
From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
To: Richards, Dennis (CPC); Johnson, Milicent (CPC); Koppel, Joel (CPC); Moore, Kathrin (CPC); Melgar, Myrna

(CPC); planning@rodneyfong.com; Rich Hillis; Aaron Jon Hyland - HPC; Andrew Wolfram (andrew@tefarch.com);
Black, Kate (CPC); Diane Matsuda; Ellen Johnck - HPC; Jonathan Pearlman; Richard S. E. Johns

Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED MOVES FORWARD PLANS TO EXPEDITE TRAFFIC SAFETY

PROJECTS AND IMPROVEMENTS
Date: Wednesday, March 06, 2019 9:17:45 AM
Attachments: 3.6.19 Pedestrian Safety Improvements.pdf

 
 
Jonas P. Ionin,
Director of Commission Affairs
 
Planning Department│City & County of San Francisco
1650 Mission Street, Suite 400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 415-558-6309│Fax: 415-558-6409
 
jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
www.sfplanning.org
 

From: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) 
Sent: Wednesday, March 06, 2019 9:13 AM
To: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED MOVES FORWARD PLANS TO EXPEDITE
TRAFFIC SAFETY PROJECTS AND IMPROVEMENTS
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Wednesday, March 6, 2019
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131
 

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED MOVES FORWARD PLANS TO

EXPEDITE TRAFFIC SAFETY PROJECTS AND IMPROVEMENTS
To accelerate the goals of the recent Vision Zero Action Strategy, the San Francisco

Municipal Transportation Agency, San Francisco Police Department, and San Francisco
Public Utilities Commission will expedite and increase pedestrian safety measures

 
San Francisco, CA – Mayor London N. Breed today announced new measures aimed at
advancing the goals of San Francisco’s Vision Zero Action Strategy and expediting traffic
safety projects in San Francisco.
 
Under Mayor Breed’s direction, the San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency
(SFMTA) will develop a policy that requires SFMTA staff to move forward with quick, near-
term safety enhancements on high injury corridors, including paint, safety posts, and
temporary sidewalk extensions.
 
Additionally, she has directed the San Francisco Police Department (SFPD) to increase traffic
enforcement and the San Francisco Public Utilities Commission (SFPUC) to commit staff
resources to achieving Vision Zero goals.
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FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE: 


Wednesday, March 6, 2019 


Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131 


 


*** PRESS RELEASE *** 


MAYOR LONDON BREED MOVES FORWARD PLANS TO EXPEDITE 


TRAFFIC SAFETY PROJECTS AND IMPROVEMENTS 


To accelerate the goals of the recent Vision Zero Action Strategy, the San Francisco Municipal 


Transportation Agency, San Francisco Police Department, and San Francisco Public Utilities 


Commission will expedite and increase pedestrian safety measures 


 


San Francisco, CA – Mayor London N. Breed today announced new measures aimed at 


advancing the goals of San Francisco’s Vision Zero Action Strategy and expediting traffic safety 


projects in San Francisco. 


 


Under Mayor Breed’s direction, the San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency (SFMTA) 


will develop a policy that requires SFMTA staff to move forward with quick, near-term safety 


enhancements on high injury corridors, including paint, safety posts, and temporary sidewalk 


extensions.  


 


Additionally, she has directed the San Francisco Police Department (SFPD) to increase traffic 


enforcement and the San Francisco Public Utilities Commission (SFPUC) to commit staff 


resources to achieving Vision Zero goals. 


 


Mayor Breed’s announcement follows a series of traffic incidents that resulted in two deaths and 


multiple injuries. While the annual number of traffic fatalities has decreased in San Francisco 


since Vision Zero legislation was introduced in 2014, these recent events highlight the need for 


continued focus and action to ensure traffic safety. 


 


“The events of the last week are yet another tragic reminder of how much work we still have to 


do to ensure that all of our residents are safe on our streets,” said Mayor Breed. “The current 


pace of traffic safety improvements in San Francisco is unacceptable and I refuse to allow red 


tape and bureaucracy to stop us from taking immediate, common-sense steps to improve safety 


while we undergo long-term improvements. Every life lost on our streets is one too many.”  


 


While the City is committed to implementing traffic improvements on high-injury corridors 


through capital improvements, these projects can be lengthy to deliver. Mayor Breed’s directive 


will create more near-term, low-cost safety improvements until longer-term improvements are 


made. 


 


“The heartbreaking reality of every fatality is that there is a family that is left grieving in its 


wake,” said Board President Norman Yee. “I authored Vision Zero five years ago because every 


resident deserves to feel and to be safe using the streets and sidewalks of our city. I stand firmly 


with Mayor Breed in her call for urgency to expedite simple and effective measures that we 
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know work to improve the safety of our streets and that save lives. We must be relentless when it 


comes to enforcing a no-tolerance policy on any shortcomings - from pursuing hit-and-run 


drivers to urging our state’s legislators to clear any obstacles to implementing Automated Speed 


Enforcement citywide.” 


 


Mayor Breed has directed the SFPD to increase enforcement of behavior most likely to result in 


a severe or fatal collision: speeding, violating the pedestrian right-of-way in a crosswalk, running 


red lights, running stop signs, and failing to yield while turning. As a benchmark, she wants the 


SFPD to increase the number of citations and to meet the so-called “focus-on-the-five” goal of 


issuing at least 50% of citations to these top five traffic violations. 


 


“There have been two vehicular fatalities in my district in the last month and both of them 


involved seniors in the crosswalk,” said Supervisor Sandra Lee Fewer. “This is heartbreaking. 


We need more enforcement to change the driving habits of people to slow down, yield to 


pedestrians and eliminate distractions while driving. Lives are at stake.” 


 


Finally, to ensure that the City is working collaboratively on traffic safety improvements, Mayor 


Breed has called on the SFPUC to devote staff resources to the City’s Vision Zero Task Force 


and Traffic Fatality Response Team. Among the most recent collisions, more than half occurred 


at night, highlighting the need for proper street-lighting on dangerous corridors. 


 


“Walk SF thanks Mayor Breed for coming out strong and taking immediate action to save lives, 


especially after this horrific past week,” said Jodie Medeiros, Executive Director of WalkSF. 


“Installing quick, inexpensive safety improvements on all of our deadliest streets by 2020 will 


have an impact on dangerous driving behavior. Traffic deaths are preventable, and of all places, 


San Francisco can lead the way in ending traffic violence.” 


 


### 


 







 
Mayor Breed’s announcement follows a series of traffic incidents that resulted in two deaths
and multiple injuries. While the annual number of traffic fatalities has decreased in San
Francisco since Vision Zero legislation was introduced in 2014, these recent events highlight
the need for continued focus and action to ensure traffic safety.
 
“The events of the last week are yet another tragic reminder of how much work we still have
to do to ensure that all of our residents are safe on our streets,” said Mayor Breed. “The
current pace of traffic safety improvements in San Francisco is unacceptable and I refuse to
allow red tape and bureaucracy to stop us from taking immediate, common-sense steps to
improve safety while we undergo long-term improvements. Every life lost on our streets is one
too many.”
 
While the City is committed to implementing traffic improvements on high-injury corridors
through capital improvements, these projects can be lengthy to deliver. Mayor Breed’s
directive will create more near-term, low-cost safety improvements until longer-term
improvements are made.
 
“The heartbreaking reality of every fatality is that there is a family that is left grieving in its
wake,” said Board President Norman Yee. “I authored Vision Zero five years ago because
every resident deserves to feel and to be safe using the streets and sidewalks of our city. I
stand firmly with Mayor Breed in her call for urgency to expedite simple and effective
measures that we know work to improve the safety of our streets and that save lives. We must
be relentless when it comes to enforcing a no-tolerance policy on any shortcomings - from
pursuing hit-and-run drivers to urging our state’s legislators to clear any obstacles to
implementing Automated Speed Enforcement citywide.”
 
Mayor Breed has directed the SFPD to increase enforcement of behavior most likely to result
in a severe or fatal collision: speeding, violating the pedestrian right-of-way in a crosswalk,
running red lights, running stop signs, and failing to yield while turning. As a benchmark, she
wants the SFPD to increase the number of citations and to meet the so-called “focus-on-the-
five” goal of issuing at least 50% of citations to these top five traffic violations.
 
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
 
Finally, to ensure that the City is working collaboratively on traffic safety improvements,
Mayor Breed has called on the SFPUC to devote staff resources to the City’s Vision Zero Task
Force and Traffic Fatality Response Team. Among the most recent collisions, more than half
occurred at night, highlighting the need for proper street-lighting on dangerous corridors.
 
“Walk SF thanks Mayor Breed for coming out strong and taking immediate action to save
lives, especially after this horrific past week,” said Jodie Medeiros, Executive Director of
WalkSF. “Installing quick, inexpensive safety improvements on all of our deadliest streets by
2020 will have an impact on dangerous driving behavior. Traffic deaths are preventable, and
of all places, San Francisco can lead the way in ending traffic violence.”
 

###



 

 



From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)
To: planning@rodneyfong.com; Melgar, Myrna (CPC); Koppel, Joel (CPC); Johnson, Milicent (CPC); Richards, Dennis

(CPC); richhillissf@gmail.com; Moore, Kathrin (CPC); Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: Fwd: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED NOMINATES DEREK FLORES TO THE PLANNING

COMMISSION
Date: Tuesday, March 05, 2019 6:32:36 PM
Attachments: 3.5.19 Planning Commission.pdf

ATT00001.htm

Jonas P. Ionin
Director of Commission Affairs

Begin forwarded message:

From: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Date: March 5, 2019 at 5:16:43 PM PST
To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED
NOMINATES DEREK FLORES TO THE PLANNING COMMISSION

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Tuesday, March 5, 2019
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131
 

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED NOMINATES DEREK

FLORES TO THE PLANNING COMMISSION
Flores, who was raised in the Richmond District and now resides there, brings
extensive experience in construction of multi-family buildings and Accessory

Dwelling Units in San Francisco
 

San Francisco, CA – Mayor London N. Breed has nominated Derek Flores to
serve as the newest member of the Planning Commission. Flores, 33, has
extensive experience with creating new housing both in San Francisco and across
the state, particularly multi-family units and Accessory Dwelling Units (ADUs).
 
Flores is a native San Franciscan who was raised in the Richmond District and
now lives a few blocks from where he grew up, with his fiancée Christina. Flores
has previously worked for NASA and Lockheed Martin Space Systems as an
engineer. He is currently the President of Development and Construction at
Tesseract Capital Group (TCG), where he utilizes his expertise as a general
contractor to develop and renovate multi-family housing units.
 
“I am proud to nominate Derek Flores to serve on the Planning Commission
because he represents a viewpoint that is too often missing from the discussion of
housing in San Francisco,” said Mayor Breed. “Derek grew up here, and through
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FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE: 
Tuesday, March 5, 2019 
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131 
 


*** PRESS RELEASE *** 
MAYOR LONDON BREED NOMINATES DEREK FLORES TO 


THE PLANNING COMMISSION 
Flores, who was raised in the Richmond District and now resides there, brings extensive 
experience in construction of multi-family buildings and Accessory Dwelling Units in San 


Francisco 
 


San Francisco, CA – Mayor London N. Breed has nominated Derek Flores to serve as the 
newest member of the Planning Commission. Flores, 33, has extensive experience with creating 
new housing both in San Francisco and across the state, particularly multi-family units and 
Accessory Dwelling Units (ADUs). 
 
Flores is a native San Franciscan who was raised in the Richmond District and now lives a few 
blocks from where he grew up, with his fiancée Christina. Flores has previously worked for 
NASA and Lockheed Martin Space Systems as an engineer. He is currently the President of 
Development and Construction at Tesseract Capital Group (TCG), where he utilizes his expertise 
as a general contractor to develop and renovate multi-family housing units.  
 
“I am proud to nominate Derek Flores to serve on the Planning Commission because he 
represents a viewpoint that is too often missing from the discussion of housing in San 
Francisco,” said Mayor Breed. “Derek grew up here, and through his work he knows both how 
complicated we make it to create new homes and the effect that has on young families, longtime 
residents, and our low- and middle-income communities. I am confident that he will help our 
City improve our housing process as we work to address this crisis.” 
 
In 2018, Flores and his team successfully completed the process of building two additional 
ADUs in a 6-unit apartment building in the Richmond District, which served as a crash-course in 
the intricacies and complexities of the requirements set forth by the various City departments 
charged with regulating ADU construction.  
 
“It is truly an honor to be nominated to the San Francisco Planning Commission by Mayor 
Breed,” said Flores. “As a third-generation San Franciscan, I’ve seen the City change 
dramatically over the decades. Serving on the Planning Commission will allow me to help guide 
the direction of development in our City for generations to come and to give back to the 
community that not only raised me, but has continued to give me so much over the years. As a 
Commissioner, I will leverage my experience in creating housing while balancing it with 
empathy for those who call San Francisco home. I will work alongside the community and City 
leaders to identify opportunities to build more affordable housing, and guide responsible growth 
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so that people from all backgrounds and income levels have the opportunity to live, work, and 
thrive in our beautiful city.” 
 
Flores is a third generation Chinese-American. He attended Alamo Elementary School, Presidio 
Middle School, and Washington High School. He graduated with a degree in Mechanical 
Engineering from the University of California Berkeley, and later earned a Masters in Product 
Development Engineering from the University of Southern California. 
  
 


### 
 











his work he knows both how complicated we make it to create new homes and the
effect that has on young families, longtime residents, and our low- and middle-
income communities. I am confident that he will help our City improve our
housing process as we work to address this crisis.”
 
In 2018, Flores and his team successfully completed the process of building two
additional ADUs in a 6-unit apartment building in the Richmond District, which
served as a crash-course in the intricacies and complexities of the requirements set
forth by the various City departments charged with regulating ADU construction.
 
“It is truly an honor to be nominated to the San Francisco Planning Commission
by Mayor Breed,” said Flores. “As a third-generation San Franciscan, I’ve seen
the City change dramatically over the decades. Serving on the Planning
Commission will allow me to help guide the direction of development in our City
for generations to come and to give back to the community that not only raised
me, but has continued to give me so much over the years. As a Commissioner, I
will leverage my experience in creating housing while balancing it with empathy
for those who call San Francisco home. I will work alongside the community and
City leaders to identify opportunities to build more affordable housing, and guide
responsible growth so that people from all backgrounds and income levels have
the opportunity to live, work, and thrive in our beautiful city.”
 
Flores is a third generation Chinese-American. He attended Alamo Elementary
School, Presidio Middle School, and Washington High School. He graduated with
a degree in Mechanical Engineering from the University of California Berkeley,
and later earned a Masters in Product Development Engineering from the
University of Southern California.
 

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
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** COMMUNITY FORMS THE SOMA WEST COMMUNITY BENEFIT DISTRICT
Date: Tuesday, March 05, 2019 2:49:55 PM
Attachments: 3.5.19 SoMa West Community Benefit District.pdf

 
 
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
Sent: Tuesday, March 05, 2019 2:46 PM
To: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** COMMUNITY FORMS THE SOMA WEST COMMUNITY BENEFIT
DISTRICT
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Tuesday, March 5, 2019
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131
 

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
COMMUNITY FORMS THE SOMA WEST COMMUNITY

BENEFIT DISTRICT
Board of Supervisors votes to approve the formation of the largest community benefit district

in the City to address cleaning and public safety; Mayor Breed to sign legislation
 

San Francisco, CA – Mayor London N. Breed, Supervisor Matt Haney, the Office of
Economic and Workforce Development, and the SoMa West Steering Committee today
announced the establishment of the SoMa West Community Benefit District (CBD). The
SoMa West CBD is geographically the largest of the 17 CBDs citywide, and will help ensure a
welcoming, clean, and economically vibrant local community.
 
“I am focused every day on keeping our communities clean, safe, and vibrant,” said Mayor
Breed. “The formation of the SoMa West CBD demonstrates that these neighbors, merchants,
property owners, and stakeholders are committed to meeting the challenges we see on our
streets every day. I am proud that they have come together to work collaboratively to improve
their neighborhood, and I am committed to working with them to make our streets cleaner and
safer for everyone."
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
Board of Supervisors votes to approve the formation of the largest community benefit district in 


the City to address cleaning and public safety; Mayor Breed to sign legislation 


 


San Francisco, CA – Mayor London N. Breed, Supervisor Matt Haney, the Office of Economic 


and Workforce Development, and the SoMa West Steering Committee today announced the 


establishment of the SoMa West Community Benefit District (CBD). The SoMa West CBD is 


geographically the largest of the 17 CBDs citywide, and will help ensure a welcoming, clean, 


and economically vibrant local community. 


 


“I am focused every day on keeping our communities clean, safe, and vibrant,” said Mayor 


Breed. “The formation of the SoMa West CBD demonstrates that these neighbors, merchants, 


property owners, and stakeholders are committed to meeting the challenges we see on our streets 


every day. I am proud that they have come together to work collaboratively to improve their 


neighborhood, and I am committed to working with them to make our streets cleaner and safer 


for everyone." 


 


The SoMa West CBD was formed after a majority vote was cast by property owners in the area 


based off weighted assessments, and the Board of Supervisors today voted to approve the 


formation. It will raise approximately $3.74 million per year in special assessments from those 


properties to carry out its management plan over the next 15 years. The boundaries of the District 


include approximately 2,765 parcels located on approximately 100 whole blocks, including 


blocks and partial blocks bounded by 5th Street and 6th Street on the east, Minna Street and 


Folsom Street on the north, South Van Ness Avenue and the U.S. Highway 101 Freeway on the 


west, and Townsend Street on the south.  


 


"I’m excited that the SoMa West CBD will help provide cleaner and safer streets for the 


residents, and build community across the diverse neighborhood,” said Supervisor Haney. “West 


SoMa is one of the highest needs areas in the city that deserves urgent focus and action. I’m 


happy to see that we were able to include a more affordable assessment for nonprofits, and a 


commitment to an inclusive, diverse board with broad representation from community 


organizations, tenants, small businesses, and property owners.” 


  


The services that the SoMa West CBD will provide include: 


 Maintenance teams that sweep, scrub, and pressure wash sidewalks and public spaces to 


remove litter, graffiti, and trash;  
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 Beautification and activation improvements to make SoMa West more visually attractive, 


which may include green spaces, wayfinding signage, trashcans, public art programs, and 


public space activation programs;  


 Safety improvements, which will include a pedestrian and bicycle safety program; 


 Marketing and district branding to promote SoMa West as a regional destination; and 


 A community grant program that will allow area nonprofits and cultural districts to apply 


for funding for programming.  


 


The formation of SoMa West took more than two years of outreach and planning by property 


owners, businesses, renters, nonprofits, and other stakeholders looking to mirror the successes of 


CBDs throughout the City. Approximately 90 public informational sessions and planning 


meetings were held during the planning process. The steering committee included a diverse mix 


of 35 local merchants, property owners, renters, and area nonprofits that reflect the 


neighborhood. Technical assistance was provided throughout the process by the Office of 


Economic and Workforce Development, which will continue to work with the new CBD to 


ensure the smooth operation of the District and help ensure it follows all legal and community 


obligations. 


 


“As a resident and service provider in the neighborhood, I am excited about the potential of the 


SoMa West CBD. This tremendous effort by residents, business owners, and community 


members has embodied United Playaz’ motto, ‘It takes the hood to save the hood,’ and we are 


looking forward to the positive impact that it will have for Western Soma,” said Misha Olivas, 


Director of Community and Family Engagement at United Playaz and a Western SoMa resident.  


 


“Throughout the years in Western SoMa, residents, property owners, businesses, and 


stakeholders have wanted a safer, cleaner, and a more vibrant neighborhood. Those of us living 


and working here have always believed in our neighborhood. The past two years has seen the 


neighborhood unify and work to this goal to form the SoMa West CBD. We are all pleased to 


say that the SoMa West CBD will now be a reality for everyone’s benefit,” said James Spinello, 


chair of the SoMa West CBD Steering Committee. “It has been an incredible journey listening to 


and hearing from our neighborhood. SoMa West CBD will be a combined effort to make our 


neighborhood a wonderful place to live, work, and visit. We are excited for the future and look 


forward to showing everyone the success of SoMa West in the years to come.” 


 


More information on the SoMa West Community Benefit District and the Management District 


Plan can be found at: http://oewd.org/community-benefit-districts. 


 


### 
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The SoMa West CBD was formed after a majority vote was cast by property owners in the
area based off weighted assessments, and the Board of Supervisors today voted to approve the
formation. It will raise approximately $3.74 million per year in special assessments from those
properties to carry out its management plan over the next 15 years. The boundaries of the
District include approximately 2,765 parcels located on approximately 100 whole blocks,
including blocks and partial blocks bounded by 5th Street and 6th Street on the east, Minna
Street and Folsom Street on the north, South Van Ness Avenue and the U.S. Highway 101
Freeway on the west, and Townsend Street on the south.

"I’m excited that the SoMa West CBD will help provide cleaner and safer streets for the
residents, and build community across the diverse neighborhood,” said Supervisor Haney.
“West SoMa is one of the highest needs areas in the city that deserves urgent focus and action.
I’m happy to see that we were able to include a more affordable assessment for nonprofits, and
a commitment to an inclusive, diverse board with broad representation from community
organizations, tenants, small businesses, and property owners.”

The services that the SoMa West CBD will provide include:
Maintenance teams that sweep, scrub, and pressure wash sidewalks and public spaces to
remove litter, graffiti, and trash;
Beautification and activation improvements to make SoMa West more visually
attractive, which may include green spaces, wayfinding signage, trashcans, public art
programs, and public space activation programs;
Safety improvements, which will include a pedestrian and bicycle safety program;
Marketing and district branding to promote SoMa West as a regional destination; and
A community grant program that will allow area nonprofits and cultural districts to
apply for funding for programming.

 
The formation of SoMa West took more than two years of outreach and planning by property
owners, businesses, renters, nonprofits, and other stakeholders looking to mirror the successes
of CBDs throughout the City. Approximately 90 public informational sessions and planning
meetings were held during the planning process. The steering committee included a diverse
mix of 35 local merchants, property owners, renters, and area nonprofits that reflect the
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
 
“As a resident and service provider in the neighborhood, I am excited about the potential of
the SoMa West CBD. This tremendous effort by residents, business owners, and community
members has embodied United Playaz’ motto, ‘It takes the hood to save the hood,’ and we are
looking forward to the positive impact that it will have for Western Soma,” said Misha Olivas,
Director of Community and Family Engagement at United Playaz and a Western SoMa
resident.
 
“Throughout the years in Western SoMa, residents, property owners, businesses, and
stakeholders have wanted a safer, cleaner, and a more vibrant neighborhood. Those of us
living and working here have always believed in our neighborhood. The past two years has
seen the neighborhood unify and work to this goal to form the SoMa West CBD. We are all
pleased to say that the SoMa West CBD will now be a reality for everyone’s benefit,” said



James Spinello, chair of the SoMa West CBD Steering Committee. “It has been an incredible
journey listening to and hearing from our neighborhood. SoMa West CBD will be a combined
effort to make our neighborhood a wonderful place to live, work, and visit. We are excited for
the future and look forward to showing everyone the success of SoMa West in the years to
come.”
 
More information on the SoMa West Community Benefit District and the Management
District Plan can be found at: http://oewd.org/community-benefit-districts.
 

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
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED AND BOARD PRESIDENT NORMAN YEE TO CO-CHAIR

AFFORDABLE HOUSING BOND WORKING GROUP, ANNOUNCE COMMUNITY CO-CHAIRS
Date: Tuesday, March 05, 2019 1:37:21 PM
Attachments: 3.5.19 Capital Plan Affordable Housing Bond Working Group.pdf

 
 
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
Sent: Tuesday, March 05, 2019 1:09 PM
To: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED AND BOARD PRESIDENT NORMAN YEE TO
CO-CHAIR AFFORDABLE HOUSING BOND WORKING GROUP, ANNOUNCE COMMUNITY CO-CHAIRS
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Tuesday, March 5, 2019
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131
 

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED AND BOARD PRESIDENT

NORMAN YEE TO CO-CHAIR AFFORDABLE HOUSING
BOND WORKING GROUP, ANNOUNCE COMMUNITY CO-

CHAIRS
Mayor Breed to also introduce 10-Year Capital Plan at Board of Supervisors, which lays out

long-term infrastructure plan that includes an Affordable Housing Bond for November
election

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed and Board President Norman Yee today
announced that they will co-chair the Affordable Housing Bond Working Group, which will
be tasked with placing an Affordable Housing Bond on the November 2019 ballot. The
Working Group will begin meeting in March, with a plan to introduce the Bond at the Board
of Supervisors in the coming months. Mayor Breed and President Yee also announced the
Community Co-Chairs who will help lead the effort.  

“I’m proud to be co-chairing this important effort to fund more affordable housing with Board
President Yee,” said Mayor Breed. “It is important that we bring everyone to the table to help
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mailto:dennis.richards@sfgov.org
mailto:Milicent.Johnson@sfgov.org
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


long-term infrastructure plan that includes an Affordable Housing Bond for November election 


San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed and Board President Norman Yee today 


announced that they will co-chair the Affordable Housing Bond Working Group, which will be 


tasked with placing an Affordable Housing Bond on the November 2019 ballot. The Working 


Group will begin meeting in March, with a plan to introduce the Bond at the Board of 


Supervisors in the coming months. Mayor Breed and President Yee also announced the 


Community Co-Chairs who will help lead the effort.    


“I’m proud to be co-chairing this important effort to fund more affordable housing with Board 


President Yee,” said Mayor Breed. “It is important that we bring everyone to the table to help 


shape this Affordable Housing Bond so we can prepare the most effective measure possible to 


provide more badly needed affordable housing for the residents of San Francisco. By working 


collaboratively, we can explore all options available to maximize this effort while still working 


within the process of our Capital Plan.”   


“I am looking forward to this collaborative, solutions-led approach to the housing crisis,” said 


Board President Yee. “We have so many pressing needs we need to fulfill. It is invaluable to 


have the political will of both the Mayor and the Board so we can push for the most impactful 


bond measure possible and provide the affordable housing we need for the future of San 


Francisco. I am thankful for this opportunity to co-chair this Working Group with Mayor Breed 


along with our community’s best thought partners.”  


The Affordable Housing Working Group Community Co-Chairs will be Myrna Melgar of 


Jamestown Community Center, Tomiquia Moss of Hamilton Families, and Malcolm Yeung of 


Chinatown Community Development Center. The Working Group will consist of elected 


officials, housing experts, affordable housing developers, tenant advocates, property owners, 


labor leaders, community leaders and others to help craft the expenditure plan for the bond.  


“This bond is a significant down payment on the deficit of affordable housing our City has 


accrued,” said Myrna Melgar, Executive Director of Jamestown Community Center and 


President of the San Francisco Planning Commission. “I am honored to help Mayor Breed in her 


efforts to build more affordable housing and build it faster.” 
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“I am happy to support Mayor Breed and President Yee’s leadership in prioritizing an affordable 


housing bond for the November 2019 ballot,” said Tomiquia Moss, Executive Director of 


Hamilton Families. “Working with community-based organizations and stakeholders is critical to 


ensure that the City and County of San Francisco are investing much needed resources in 


housing for our most vulnerable San Franciscans.” 


 


“Affordability in San Francisco is an issue that isn’t going away,” said Malcolm Yeung of 


Chinatown Community Development Center. “Affordable housing needs to be treated like public 


infrastructure—something the city regularly invests in—not just in times of crisis. I applaud 


Mayor Breed for recognizing the long-term nature of this problem by including affordable 


housing in the City’s capital planning process.” 


 


Mayor Breed will also be introducing the 10-Year Capital Plan at the Board of Supervisors 


today, which was approved by the Capital Planning Committee last week. Under the proposed 


Capital Plan, a $300 million Affordable Housing Bond is scheduled for the November 2019 


election. Mayor Breed has expressed interest in finding ways to increase the amount of the bond 


while maintaining current property tax levels, following the policy constraint of the Capital Plan, 


which could include identifying extra bonding capacity as the City’s financial forecast is updated 


later this month. 


Published every other year, the 10-Year Capital Plan is a fiscally constrained expenditure plan 


that lays out infrastructure investments over the next decade. The City Administrator prepares 


the document with input from citywide stakeholders that have put forth their best ideas and most 


realistic estimates of San Francisco’s future needs.  


### 


 







shape this Affordable Housing Bond so we can prepare the most effective measure possible to
provide more badly needed affordable housing for the residents of San Francisco. By working
collaboratively, we can explore all options available to maximize this effort while still
working within the process of our Capital Plan.” 
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
Francisco. I am thankful for this opportunity to co-chair this Working Group with Mayor
Breed along with our community’s best thought partners.” 

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
President of the San Francisco Planning Commission. “I am honored to help Mayor Breed in
her efforts to build more affordable housing and build it faster.”
 
“I am happy to support Mayor Breed and President Yee’s leadership in prioritizing an
affordable housing bond for the November 2019 ballot,” said Tomiquia Moss, Executive
Director of Hamilton Families. “Working with community-based organizations and
stakeholders is critical to ensure that the City and County of San Francisco are investing much
needed resources in housing for our most vulnerable San Franciscans.”
 
“Affordability in San Francisco is an issue that isn’t going away,” said Malcolm Yeung of
Chinatown Community Development Center. “Affordable housing needs to be treated like
public infrastructure—something the city regularly invests in—not just in times of crisis. I
applaud Mayor Breed for recognizing the long-term nature of this problem by including
affordable housing in the City’s capital planning process.”
 
Mayor Breed will also be introducing the 10-Year Capital Plan at the Board of Supervisors
today, which was approved by the Capital Planning Committee last week. Under the proposed
Capital Plan, a $300 million Affordable Housing Bond is scheduled for the November 2019
election. Mayor Breed has expressed interest in finding ways to increase the amount of the
bond while maintaining current property tax levels, following the policy constraint of the
Capital Plan, which could include identifying extra bonding capacity as the City’s financial
forecast is updated later this month.

Published every other year, the 10-Year Capital Plan is a fiscally constrained expenditure plan
that lays out infrastructure investments over the next decade. The City Administrator prepares
the document with input from citywide stakeholders that have put forth their best ideas and
most realistic estimates of San Francisco’s future needs.

###
 
 
 



 
This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from
untrusted sources.

From: CPC-Commissions Secretary
To: Aaron Jon Hyland - HPC; Andrew Wolfram (andrew@tefarch.com); Black, Kate (CPC); Diane Matsuda; Ellen

Johnck - HPC; Jonathan Pearlman; Richard S. E. Johns
Cc: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: TZK Broadway, LLC submittal for HPC & response to Telegraph Hill Dwellers
Date: Tuesday, March 05, 2019 9:36:30 AM
Attachments: TZK letter to Planning reply to TTHD-02--4-2019.pdf

 
 
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
 

From: Jay Wallace <jwallace@jaywallaceassociates.com> 
Sent: Monday, March 04, 2019 4:24 PM
To: Vimr, Jonathan (CPC) <jonathan.vimr@sfgov.org>; CPC-Commissions Secretary
<commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Cc: Peskin, Aaron (BOS) <aaron.peskin@sfgov.org>; Stan Hayes <stanhayes1967@gmail.com>
Subject: TZK Broadway, LLC submittal for HPC & response to Telegraph Hill Dwellers
 

 

 
Dear Jon and Jonas:  Please see attached letter for submission to the Historic Preservation
Commission and the Commissioners.  Thank you.  Jay Wallace
 
 
Jay Wallace 
Kenwood Investments, LLC
Platinum Advisors, LLC
170 Columbus Avenue, #240
San Francisco, CA   94133
415-601-2081
jwallace@jaywallaceassociates.com
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
Subject: FW: Categorical Exemptions
Date: Tuesday, March 05, 2019 9:35:45 AM
Attachments: 2018-012893ENV-CEQA Checklist and PTR (ID 1080045).pdf

2018-016992ENV-CEQA Checklist and PTR (ID 1080132).pdf

 
 
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
 

From: Huggins, Monica (CPC) 
Sent: Monday, March 04, 2019 5:03 PM
To: CTYPLN - COMMISSION SECRETARY <CPC.COMMISSIONSECRETARY@sfgov.org>
Subject: Categorical Exemptions
 

Hello,
 
Please forward the attached Categorical Exemptions to the HPC Commissioners.
 
Thank You,
 
Monica Huggins
Administrative Assistant
City and County of San Francisco
Environmental Planning
1650 Mission Street, 4th Floor
San Francisco, CA  94105
415-575-9128
Monica.Huggins@sfgov.org
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mailto:aaron.hyland.hpc@gmail.com
mailto:andrew@tefarch.com
mailto:kate.black@sfgov.org
mailto:dianematsuda@hotmail.com
mailto:ellen.hpc@ellenjohnckconsulting.com
mailto:ellen.hpc@ellenjohnckconsulting.com
mailto:jonathan.pearlman.hpc@gmail.com
mailto:rsejohns@yahoo.com
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/
mailto:Monica.Huggins@sfgov.org



CEQA Categorical Exemption Determination


PROPERTY INFORMATION/PROJECT DESCRIPTION


Project Address


1055 Ingerson Ave


Block/Lot(s)


Project description for Planning Department approval.


Permit No.


Addition/ 


Alteration


Demolition (requires HRE for 


Category B Building)


New 


Construction


HORIZONTAL ADDITON TO AN EXISTING SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENCE WITH A PROPOSED 


ACCESSORY DWELLING UNIT (ADU)@ 3RD FL. INCLUEDES ELECTRICAL, PLUMBING,EXCAVATION & 


STRUCTURAL WORK. ORDIANCE 95-17 (ADD 5 BATHROOMS, 1 BEDROOM)


Case No.


2018-012893ENV


4969039


201809211090


STEP 1: EXEMPTION CLASS


*Note: If neither class applies, an Environmental Evaluation Application is required.*


Class 1 - Existing Facilities. Interior and exterior alterations; additions under 10,000 sq. ft.


Class 3 - New Construction. Up to three new single-family residences or six dwelling units in one 


building; commercial/office structures; utility extensions; change of use under 10,000 sq. ft. if principally 


permitted or with a CU.


Class 32 - In-Fill Development. New Construction of seven or more units or additions greater than 


10,000 sq. ft. and meets the conditions described below:


(a) The project is consistent with the applicable general plan designation and all applicable general plan 


policies as well as with applicable zoning designation and regulations.


(b) The proposed development occurs within city limits on a project site of no more than 5 acres 


substantially surrounded by urban uses.


(c) The project site has no value as habitat for endangered rare or threatened species.


(d) Approval of the project would not result in any significant effects relating to traffic, noise, air quality, or 


water quality.


(e) The site can be adequately served by all required utilities and public services.


FOR ENVIRONMENTAL PLANNING USE ONLY


Class ____







STEP 2: CEQA IMPACTS
TO BE COMPLETED BY PROJECT PLANNER


If any box is checked below, an Environmental Evaluation Application is required. 


Air Quality: Would the project add new sensitive receptors (specifically, schools, day care facilities, 


hospitals, residential dwellings, and senior-care facilities within an Air Pollution Exposure Zone? Does the 


project have the potential to emit substantial pollutant concentrations (e.g., backup diesel generators, 


heavy industry, diesel trucks, etc.)? (refer to EP _ArcMap > CEQA Catex Determination Layers > Air Pollution 


Exposure Zone)


Hazardous Materials: If the project site is located on the Maher map or is suspected of containing 


hazardous materials (based on a previous use such as gas station, auto repair, dry cleaners, or heavy 


manufacturing, or a site with underground storage tanks): Would the project involve 50 cubic yards or 


more of soil disturbance ‐ or a change of use from industrial to residential? If yes, this box must be 


checked and the project applicant must submit an Environmental Application with a Phase I 


Environmental Site Assessment. Exceptions: do not check box


if the applicant presents documentation of enrollment in the San Francisco Department of Public Health 


(DPH) Maher program, a DPH waiver from the Maher program, or other documentation from 


Environmental Planning staff that hazardous material effects would be less than significant (refer to 


EP_ArcMap > Maher layer).


Transportation: Does the project create six (6) or more net new parking spaces or residential units? 


Does the project have the potential to adversely affect transit, pedestrian and/or bicycle safety (hazards) 


or the adequacy of nearby transit, pedestrian and/or bicycle facilities?


Archeological Resources: Would the project result in soil disturbance/modification greater than two


(2) feet below grade in an archeological sensitive area or eight (8) feet in a non -archeological sensitive


area? (refer to EP_ArcMap > CEQA Catex Determination Layers > Archeological Sensitive Area)


Subdivision/Lot Line Adjustment: Does the project site involve a subdivision or lot line adjustment


on a lot with a slope average of 20% or more? (refer to EP_ArcMap > CEQA Catex Determination Layers >


Topography)


Slope = or > 20%: Does the project involve any of the following: (1) square footage expansion greater


than 1,000 sq. ft. outside of the existing building footprint, (2) excavation of 50 cubic yards or more of


soil, (3) new construction? (refer to EP_ArcMap > CEQA Catex Determination Layers > Topography) If box is


checked, a geotechnical report is required.


Seismic: Landslide Zone: Does the project involve any of the following: (1) square footage expansion


greater than 1,000 sq. ft. outside of the existing building footprint, (2) excavation of 50 cubic yards or


more of soil, (3) new construction? (refer to EP_ArcMap > CEQA Catex Determination Layers > Seismic Hazard


Zones) If box is checked, a geotechnical report is required.


Seismic: Liquefaction Zone: Does the project involve any of the following: (1) square footage


expansion greater than 1,000 sq. ft. outside of the existing building footprint, (2) excavation of 50


cubic yards or more of soil, (3) new construction? (refer to EP_ArcMap > CEQA Catex Determination Layers >


Seismic Hazard Zones) If box is checked, a geotechnical report will likely be required.


If no boxes are checked above, GO TO STEP 3. If one or more boxes are checked above, an 


Environmental Evaluation Application is required, unless reviewed by an Environmental Planner.


Comments and Planner Signature (optional): Laura Lynch







STEP 3: PROPERTY STATUS - HISTORIC RESOURCE
TO BE COMPLETED BY PROJECT PLANNER


PROPERTY IS ONE OF THE FOLLOWING: (refer to Parcel Information Map)


Category A: Known Historical Resource. GO TO STEP 5.


Category B: Potential Historical Resource (over 45 years of age). GO TO STEP 4.


Category C: Not a Historical Resource or Not Age Eligible (under 45 years of age). GO TO STEP 6.


STEP 4: PROPOSED WORK CHECKLIST


TO BE COMPLETED BY PROJECT PLANNER


Check all that apply to the project.


1. Change of use and new construction. Tenant improvements not included.


2. Regular maintenance or repair to correct or repair deterioration, decay, or damage to building.


3. Window replacement that meets the Department’s Window Replacement Standards. Does not include


storefront window alterations.


4. Garage work. A new opening that meets the Guidelines for Adding Garages and Curb Cuts, and/or


replacement of a garage door in an existing opening that meets the Residential Design Guidelines.


5. Deck, terrace construction, or fences not visible from any immediately adjacent public right-of-way.


6. Mechanical equipment installation that is not visible from any immediately adjacent public 


right-of-way.


7. Dormer installation that meets the requirements for exemption from public notification under Zoning


Administrator Bulletin No. 3: Dormer Windows.


8. Addition(s) that are not visible from any immediately adjacent public right -of-way for 150 feet in each


direction; does not extend vertically beyond the floor level of the top story of the structure or is only a


single story in height; does not have a footprint that is more than 50% larger than that of the original


building; and does not cause the removal of architectural significant roofing features.


Note: Project Planner must check box below before proceeding.


Project is not listed. GO TO STEP 5.


Project does not conform to the scopes of work. GO TO STEP 5.


Project involves four or more work descriptions. GO TO STEP 5.


Project involves less than four work descriptions. GO TO STEP 6.


STEP 5: CEQA IMPACTS - ADVANCED HISTORICAL REVIEW
TO BE COMPLETED BY PROJECT PLANNER


Check all that apply to the project.


1. Project involves a known historical resource (CEQA Category A) as determined by Step 3 and


conforms entirely to proposed work checklist in Step 4.


2. Interior alterations to publicly accessible spaces.


3. Window replacement of original/historic windows that are not “in-kind” but are consistent with


existing historic character.


4. Façade/storefront alterations that do not remove, alter, or obscure character-defining features.


5. Raising the building in a manner that does not remove, alter, or obscure character -defining


features.


6. Restoration based upon documented evidence of a building’s historic condition, such as historic


photographs, plans, physical evidence, or similar buildings.







7. Addition(s), including mechanical equipment that are minimally visible from a public right -of-way


and meet the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation .


8. Other work consistent with the Secretary of the Interior Standards for the Treatment of Historic 


Properties (specify or add comments):


9. Other work that would not materially impair a historic district (specify or add comments):


(Requires approval by Senior Preservation Planner/Preservation Coordinator)


10. Reclassification of property status. (Requires approval by Senior Preservation 


Planner/Preservation


Reclassify to Category A


a. Per HRER dated


b. Other (specify):


(attach HRER)


Reclassify to Category C


03/04/2019


received signed PTR from AKV dated 3/1/2019


Note: If ANY box in STEP 5 above is checked, a Preservation Planner MUST check one box below.


Further environmental review required. Based on the information provided, the project requires an


Environmental Evaluation Application to be submitted. GO TO STEP 6.


Project can proceed with categorical exemption review. The project has been reviewed by the


Preservation Planner and can proceed with categorical exemption review. GO TO STEP 6.


Comments (optional):


Preservation Planner Signature: Monica Giacomucci


TO BE COMPLETED BY PROJECT PLANNER


STEP 6: CATEGORICAL EXEMPTION DETERMINATION


Further environmental review required. Proposed project does not meet scopes of work in either 


(check all that apply):


Step 2 - CEQA Impacts


Step 5 - Advanced Historical Review


STOP! Must file an Environmental Evaluation Application.


Project Approval Action: Signature:


If Discretionary Review before the Planning Commission is requested,


the Discretionary Review hearing is the Approval Action for the  project.


Once signed or stamped and dated, this document constitutes a categorical exemption pursuant to CEQA Guidelines and Chapter 


31of the Administrative Code.


In accordance with Chapter 31 of the San Francisco Administrative Code, an appeal of an exemption determination can only be 


filed within 30 days of the project receiving the first approval action.


Please note that other approval actions may be required for the project. Please contact the assigned planner for these approvals.


Monica Giacomucci


03/04/2019


No further environmental review is required. The project is categorically exempt under CEQA.


There are no unusual circumstances that would result in a reasonable possibility of a significant 


effect.


Building Permit







TO BE COMPLETED BY PROJECT PLANNER


STEP 7: MODIFICATION OF A CEQA EXEMPT PROJECT


In accordance with Chapter 31 of the San Francisco Administrative Code, when a California Environmental


Quality Act (CEQA) exempt project changes after the Approval Action and requires a subsequent approval, the


Environmental Review Officer (or his or her designee) must determine whether the proposed change 


constitutes a substantial modification of that project. This checklist shall be used to determine whether the 


proposed changes to the approved project would constitute a “substantial modification” and, therefore, be 


subject to additional environmental review pursuant to CEQA.


PROPERTY INFORMATION/PROJECT DESCRIPTION


Project Address (If different than front page) Block/Lot(s) (If different than 


front page)


Case No. Previous Building Permit No. New Building Permit No.


Plans Dated Previous Approval Action New Approval Action


1055 Ingerson Ave


2018-012893PRJ


Building Permit


4969/039


201809211090


Modified Project Description:


DETERMINATION IF PROJECT CONSTITUTES SUBSTANTIAL MODIFICATION


Compared to the approved project, would the modified project:


Result in expansion of the building envelope, as defined in the Planning Code;


Result in the change of use that would require public notice under Planning Code


Sections 311 or 312;


Result in demolition as defined under Planning Code Section 317 or 19005(f)?


Is any information being presented that was not known and could not have been known


at the time of the original determination, that shows the originally approved project may


no longer qualify for the exemption?


If at least one of the above boxes is checked, further environmental review is required.


DETERMINATION OF NO SUBSTANTIAL MODIFICATION


Planner Name:


The proposed modification would not result in any of the above changes.


If this box is checked, the proposed modifications are categorically exempt under CEQA, in accordance with prior project


approval and no additional environmental review is required. This determination shall be posted on the Planning


Department website and office and mailed to the applicant, City approving entities, and anyone requesting written notice.


Date:







Preservation Team Meeting Date: Date of Form Completion 2/12/2019


PRESERVATION TEAM REVIEW FORM


  PROJECT ISSUES:


 Is the subject Property an eligible historic resource? 


 If so, are the proposed changes a significant impact?


 Additional Notes:  


Submitted: Supplemental Information for Historic Resource Evaluation prepared by 
Howard Blecher (dated September 2018) 
 


  PRESERVATION TEAM REVIEW:


   Category:  A  B  C


Individual Historic District/Context


Property is individually eligible for inclusion in a 
California Register under one or more of the 
following Criteria: 


Property is in an eligible California Register 
Historic District/Context under one or more of 
the following Criteria: 


Criterion 1 - Event:


Criterion 2 -Persons:


Criterion 3 - Architecture:


Criterion 4 - Info. Potential:


Criterion 1 - Event:


Criterion 2 -Persons:


Criterion 3 - Architecture:


Criterion 4 - Info. Potential:


Period of Significance: Period of Significance: 


Yes No


Yes No


Yes No


Yes No


Yes No


Yes No


Yes No


Yes No


Contributor Non-Contributor


  PROJECT INFORMATION:


Planner: Address:


Monica Giacomucci 1055 Ingerson Avenue


Block/Lot: Cross Streets:


4969/039 Jennings and Ingalls Streets


CEQA Category: Art. 10/11: BPA/Case No.:


B N/A 2018-012893ENV


  PURPOSE OF REVIEW:   PROJECT DESCRIPTION:


CEQA Article 10/11 Preliminary/PIC Alteration Demo/New Construction


DATE OF PLANS UNDER REVIEW: 8/15/2018







   Complies with the Secretary’s Standards/Art 10/Art 11:


   CEQA Material Impairment to the individual historic resource:


   CEQA Material Impairment to the historic district:


   Requires Design Revisions:


   Defer to Residential Design Team:


Yes No N/A


Yes No


Yes No


Yes No


Yes No


PRESERVATION TEAM COMMENTS:


     According to the Supplemental Application for Historic Resource Determination and 
information accessed in Planning Department files, the subject property is improved with 
a one-and-a-half-story over basement wood-frame single-family residence. The subject 
building was likely designed in the Queen Anne style, but it has been altered over time. A 
1953 building permit allowed the removal of "ginger bread" from the front of the building, 
likely referencing the building's original millwork. The building's remaining Queen Anne 
architectural features include the front-facing gable with bargeboard and returns, 
octagonal bay, recessed paneled residential entry, and a turned wood porch  column.  
    The subject parcel was surveyed and recorded in 1870, and it was originally owned by 
Jess Rindleberger, president of the Bay Park Homestead Association. The existing 
residence was constructed in 1907 by carpenter John Mews for German immigrant Charles 
H. Zentgraf and his wife, Meta (or Metor). Charles was employed as a rigger at a local 
ironworks and later built trusses at a shipyard. The Zentgrafs and their two children resided 
at 1055 Ingerson until 1955, when the property was sold to Franz Heinzen (occupation 
unknown). Heinzen sold the property to Wilbur Ely, an employee of the San Francisco 
Department of Public Works, and his wife Avanell in 1961. Their daughters, Carolyn and 
Diane, inherited the property in 2004. 
     The only known permitted alteration was the removal of "ginger bread" and recladding 
of the front facade with asbestos siding in 1953. Unpermitted work has included 
installation of the garage, replacement of original doors and windows, picket fencing at 
the front property line, and a rear addition.  
     The subject property is not included in any local, state, or national registers. It is located 
within the boundaries of the African American Arts and Cultural District, but the building 
does not appear to have been the site of any significant events within this context such 
that the property would qualify for the California Register under Criterion 1. Likewise, none 
of the owners or occupants of the subject building has been identified as important to the 
history of African American arts and culture within the Bayview neighborhood or the city 
of San Francisco (Criterion 2).  
     The building is not architecturally distinct and has had character-defining details 
removed such that it would not qualify individually for listing in the California Register 
under Criterion 3.  
 
(continued)


  Signature of a Senior Preservation Planner / Preservation Coordinator: Date:


Allison K. Vanderslice Digitally signed by Allison K. Vanderslice 
Date: 2019.03.01 16:32:05 -08'00'








CEQA Categorical Exemption Determination


PROPERTY INFORMATION/PROJECT DESCRIPTION


Project Address


1375-1377 24TH


Block/Lot(s)


Project description for Planning Department approval.


Permit No.


Addition/ 


Alteration


Demolition (requires HRE for 


Category B Building)


New 


Construction


Additions and alterations to an existing 2-unit residential building in an RH-2 zoning district. The scope of work 


includes interior renovations, a third floor addition, renovation of the facade, and full seismic retrofit. There will 


be no horizontal expansion in the existing ground floor and second floor. The existing structure has been found 


not to be a historical resource.


Case No.


2018-016992ENV


1779011


201811307126


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


Per PTR form signed on 3/1/2019


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


Preservation Planner Signature: Stephanie Cisneros


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


Stephanie Cisneros


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


2018-016992PRJ


Building Permit


1779/011


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







Preservation Team Meeting Date: Date of Form Completion 2/20/2019


PRESERVATION TEAM REVIEW FORM


  PROJECT ISSUES:


 Is the subject Property an eligible historic resource? 


 If so, are the proposed changes a significant impact?


 Additional Notes:  


Submitted: Historic Resource Evaluation Part One prepared by VerPlanck Historic 
Preservation Consulting (September 7, 2018)  
 


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


Elizabeth Munyan 1375-77 24th Ave 


Block/Lot: Cross Streets:


 1779/011 Irving Street and Judah Street


CEQA Category: Art. 10/11: BPA/Case No.:


B n/a 2018-016992ENV


  PURPOSE OF REVIEW:   PROJECT DESCRIPTION:


CEQA Article 10/11 Preliminary/PIC Alteration Demo/New Construction


DATE OF PLANS UNDER REVIEW: 12/26/2018







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


According to the HRE Part One prepared by VerPlanck Historic Preservation Consulting and 
information found in Planning Department files, the subject property at 1375-77 24th 
Avenue contains a one-story-over-basement, wood-frame, two-family dwelling designed 
in the Mediterranean style. The subject building was designed and built in 1937 on 
speculation by Alex Sergo, a contractor. Upon construction, the subject property was 
immediately sold to Adam and Anna Holak, who were both mattress factory employees. 
The couple owned the subject property until they both died in 1942. In 1943, the subject 
property was transferred to Anna’s relative Setlla Piestrzynska who converted the 
basement of the subject dwelling into a three-room flat and rented the property out. After 
Stella sold the property in 1953, it underwent a series of owners and multiple tenants. The 
addition of the new dwelling unit at the basement level in 1948 was the most significant 
alteration to the subject property. Other alterations include replacement of garage doors, 
paving yard with concrete, and addition of a metal security gate (1960).   
 
No known historic events took place at this property (Criterion 1). None of the owners or 
occupants have been identified as important to history (Criterion 2). As a classic five-room 
bungalow common throughout the Sunset District, the subject property lacks architectural 
distinction such that it would qualify individually under Criterion 3 (Architecture). Based 
upon a review of information in the Department records, the subject building is not 
significant under Criterion 4 since this significance criterion typically applies to rare 
construction types when involving the built environment. The subject building is not an 
example of a rare construction type. Assessment of archaeological sensitivity is undertaken 
through the Department’s Preliminary Archaeological Review process and is outside the 
scope of this review. 
 
The subject property is not located within the boundaries of any identified historic district 
or located adjacent to any known historic resources (Category A properties). The 
properties adjacent to the subject property were constructed between 1925 and 1945, 
with some infill development occurring later. Although there are some parts of the Outer 
Sunset that are homogeneous in terms of age, style, and urban form, the subject block is 
not a cohesive unit, and a majority of properties have been significantly remodeled in 
recent years making it unlikely to ever be a part of a historic district. Therefore, the subject 
property is ineligible for listing in the California Register individually or as a part of a 
historic district. 


  Signature of a Senior Preservation Planner / Preservation Coordinator: Date:


Allison K. Vanderslice Digitally signed by Allison K. Vanderslice 
Date: 2019.03.01 16:35:38 -08'00'
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This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

From: CPC-Commissions Secretary
To: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: THD COMMENTS - 809 Montgomery (Case No. 2017-003843COA)
Date: Monday, March 04, 2019 12:26:23 PM
Attachments: THD 809 Montgomery ltr_FINAL 3-3-19.pdf

 
 
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
 

From: Stan Hayes <stanhayes1967@gmail.com> 
Sent: Monday, March 04, 2019 12:09 PM
To: skaggs@page-turnbull.com
Cc: Aaron Hyland <aaron.hyland.hpc@gmail.com>; dianematsuda@hotmail.com; Black, Kate (CPC)
<kate.black@sfgov.org>; ellen.hpc@ellenjohnckconsulting.com; rsejohns <RSEJohns@yahoo.com>;
Jonathan Pearlman <jonathan.pearlman.hpc@gmail.com>; Andrew Wolfram
<andrew@tefarch.com>; CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>;
kiernat@page-turnbull.com; Salgado, Rebecca (CPC) <rebecca.salgado@sfgov.org>; Frye, Tim (CPC)
<tim.frye@sfgov.org>; Peskin, Aaron (BOS) <aaron.peskin@sfgov.org>
Subject: THD COMMENTS - 809 Montgomery (Case No. 2017-003843COA)
 

 

Mr. Ralls -
 
On behalf of the Planning & Zoning Committee of the Telegraph Hill Dwellers, we want to thank you
and your project team for presenting the updated proposal for the building at 809 Montgomery.
 
We appreciate the revisions to the earlier design that the project team has made in response
to concerns listed in THD’s letter of September 21, 2018.
 
Per our attached letter, with the incorporation of these changes, THD is pleased to offer its
support for approval of a Certificate of Appropriateness for the project by the Historic
Preservation Commission at its upcoming hearing on March 6, 2019.
 
We intend that this letter be submitted as THD's comments for that hearing, and we have
copied the HPC and its members accordingly on this email.
 
Sincerely,

mailto:commissions.secretary@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/



 


 


 


March 3, 2019       


Daniel Ralls, Principal 
Olson Kundig 
c/o Elisa Skaggs 
Page & Turnbull 
417 Montgomery Street, 8th Floor,  
San Francisco, California 94104 
Via email:  <skaggs@page-turnbull.com> 


 Re: 809 Montgomery Street 
  Case No. 2017-003843COA 
  Jackson Square Historic District 


Dear Mr. Ralls, 


 On behalf of the Planning & Zoning Committee of the Telegraph Hill Dwellers 
(THD), we thank you and your project team for presenting the updated proposal for 
the building at 809 Montgomery to our committee on February 25, 2019.   


 We particularly appreciate the proposed revisions to the design that the 
project team has made in response to the concerns listed in THD’s letter of September 
21, 2018.  With the incorporation of these changes, which are set forth below, THD is 
pleased to offer its support for approval by the Historic Preservation Commission of a 
Certificate of Appropriateness for the project. 


Reducing the Third Floor Addition/Roof Deck 


 In the revised plan, the proposed third floor addition is lowered by 2’-10” from 
the previous design and the “wall” of the addition is faced with unpainted brick to 
complement the texture and color of that found in the Jackson Square Historic 
District.  Although THD would prefer that no volumetric expansions be made to this 
historic building, we agree that these changes will help to reduce its overall visual 
mass, giving deference to the original historic resource.  


 Regarding the previously proposed plant material on the roof deck – around 
the edges and parapet, we appreciate the design team’s agreement that foliage should 
not be visible from the street given the commercial character of the Historic District. 
We address the proposals to add plant material to the north facing “wall” of the 
addition below. 


Retaining Heavy Timber Construction 


 As proposed in the revised plan, the heavy timber columns will be retained and 
the secondary timber framing will be exposed at the gallery level to express the 
historic character of the structure.  


  



mailto:skaggs@page-turnbull.com





March 3, 2019 
Page 2 
 


Enhancing the Pedestrian View of Main Level Art Gallery 


 We again commend the project team on the treatment proposed for reducing 
the visibility of the existing stairway down to the basement.  In response to the 
committee’s concern that the proposed illumination and bright white paint on the 
gallery walls would appear highly reflective to the pedestrian, the design team agreed 
to select a palette to highlight the historic character of the building.  Further, as 
explained by the design team at our meeting, the existing timber framing will be 
retained and supplemented in areas where it had been removed with reclaimed 
lumber to match as closely as possible the existing conditions and a transparent stain 
will allow the natural grain to show through. 


Consultation with Neighbors at 845 Montgomery 


 Thank you for engaging in a dialogue with the neighbors at 845 Montgomery 
regarding their concerns that the new third floor addition would impair the light and 
air from their residential units.  As you acknowledged at our meeting, while they 
would prefer that no addition be made to the 809 Montgomery building, we 
understand from your presentation that most seem satisfied with the reduced 
massing resulting from lowering the additional floor by 2’-10”.   


 It is also our understanding, however, that the 845 Montgomery residents 
would like the north facing “wall” of the addition to be covered with plant material.  In 
response, the design team presented three proposals to our committee for 
consideration:  1) planted with a green wall, 2) with ivy-covered wall, and 3) without 
plant material.  While the committee would prefer that the wall not be covered with 
plant material, it was the consensus that the ivy-covered wall would be the least 
visually obtrusive from the public right of way, provided it would not damage the 
original brick of the historic building.  


Compatibility of Replacement Windows and Storefront System 


 The committee fully supports the proposed changes to the windows and doors 
as presented by the project team and shown on the revised plans, including 1) the 
replacement of the existing non-historic windows at the second floor with double 
hung wood windows with ogee lugs; 2) the painted divided-lite glazing systems for 
the entry and storefront, which are in keeping with the historic storefronts found in 
the Jackson Square Historic District; and 3) the painted divided-lite glazing system 
proposed for the new addition that will ensure compatibility with the historic 
building.  
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Page 3 
 


*   *   * 


 On behalf of THD’s Planning & Zoning Committee, we appreciate the 
opportunity to work with the project team to make design changes that will help to 
maintain the historic integrity and character of the Jackson Square Historic District 
and the contributing status of 809 Montgomery to the City’s first historic district. 
 


Sincerely, 


     Stan Hayes 
Chair, Planning & Zoning Committee 
Telegraph Hill Dwellers 


cc: President, Aaron Hyland  aaron.hyland.hpc@gmail.com 
Vice-President, Diane Matsuda  dianematsuda@hotmail.com 


 Commissioner Kate Black  kate.black@sfgov.org 
 Commissioner Ellen Johnck  ellen.hpc@ellenjohnckconsulting.com 
 Commissioner Richard Johns  RSEJohns@yahoo.com 
 Commissioner Jonathan Pearlman  Johnathan.perlman.hpc@gmail.com 
 Commissioner Andrew Wolfram  andrew@tefarch.com 
 Commission Secretary  Commissions.Secretary@sfgov.org 
 Carolyn Kiernat   kiernat@page-turnbull.com 


Rebecca Salgado, Preservation Planner  rebecca.salgado@sfgov.org 
 Tim Frye, Historic Preservation Officer  tim.frye@sfgov.org 


Supervisor Aaron Peskin, District 3  aaron.peskin@sfgov.org 
 THD Planning & Zoning Committee 



mailto:aaron.hyland.hpc@gmail.com

mailto:dianematsuda@hotmail.com
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Stan Hayes
 
Co-Chair, Planning & Zoning Committee
Telegraph Hill Dwellers



 
This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

From: CPC-Commissions Secretary
To: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: THD COMMENTS - Case No. 2015-016326COA (Teatro ZinZanni)
Date: Monday, March 04, 2019 12:26:11 PM
Attachments: THD Teatro ZinZanni HPC ltr_FINAL 3-4-19.pdf

 
 
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
Sent: Monday, March 04, 2019 12:23 PM
To: Vimr, Jonathan (CPC) <jonathan.vimr@sfgov.org>
Cc: Aaron Hyland <aaron.hyland.hpc@gmail.com>; dianematsuda@hotmail.com; Black, Kate (CPC)
<kate.black@sfgov.org>; ellen.hpc@ellenjohnckconsulting.com; rsejohns <RSEJohns@yahoo.com>;
Johnathan.perlman.hpc@gmail.com; Andrew Wolfram <andrew@tefarch.com>; CPC-Commissions
Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Frye, Tim (CPC) <tim.frye@sfgov.org>; Jay Wallace
<jwallace@jaywallaceassociates.com>; Peskin, Aaron (BOS) <aaron.peskin@sfgov.org>
Subject: THD COMMENTS - Case No. 2015-016326COA (Teatro ZinZanni)
 

 

Mr. Vimr -
 
For the upcoming HPC hearing, please find attached a comment letter from the Telegraph Hill
Dwellers regarding the above-referenced application for a Certificate of Appropriateness for the
proposed Teatro ZinZanni theater/hotel project. 
 
We look forward to further discussions with the HPC, Planning staff, and the project team as the
planning process continues.
 
Sincerely,
 
Stan Hayes
 
Chair, Planning & Zoning Committee
Telegraph Hill Dwellers

mailto:commissions.secretary@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/



 


 


March 4, 2019    


Jonathan Vimr 
San Francisco Planning Department 
1650 Mission Street 
San Francisco, CA 94103 
Via e-mail <jonathan.vimr@sfgov.org> 


Re: Seawall Lots 323 & 324 (Teatro ZinZanni) 
 Case No. 2015-016326COA 
 Northeast Waterfront Historic District 


Dear Mr. Vimr, 


On behalf of the Telegraph Hill Dwellers (THD), we are pleased to submit the 
following comments on the above-referenced application for a Certificate of 
Appropriateness (COA) for the proposed Teatro ZinZanni theater/hotel project.  
These comments both complement and supplement previous written and verbal 
comments that THD has made to the Architectural Review Committee (ARC) of the 
Historic Preservation Commission (HPC), the Waterfront Design Advisory Committee 
(WDAC), project proponents, and others. 


This project is proposed for a high-profile waterfront site that is literally at the 
gateway to the Broadway corridor to North Beach and Chinatown.  Because of this 
and the sensitivity of its location within the Northeast Waterfront Historic District 
and across from the Port’s National Register Embarcadero District, the success of the 
project’s design and functioning is of especially high importance for all of us. 


While we support a number of the design modifications that have been made 
to the hotel over this project’s course of development, we offer the following 
comments on the concerns that remain: 


Proposed Location of Theater Structure Conflicts With General Plan 


We urge you to reexamine the design and location of the theater structure 
(particularly its glass enclosure), which would block the Vallejo Street view corridor 
and right-of-way, creating General Plan conflicts that include the following: 


• Conflict with the General Plan’s protection of view corridors by blocking 
the Vallejo Street view corridor to the pier bulkhead and bay, which is 
explicitly protected by the following policies of the General Plan’s 
Northeastern Waterfront Area Plan (bolding and underlining added): 


POLICY 10.2  
Preserve and create view corridors which can link the City and the Bay. 


POLICY 10.11 
Maintain and enhance existing grade level view corridors to the Bay 
particularly from Kearny, Broadway, Howard, Folsom, and Beale Streets, 
and to the bulkhead buildings, significant architectural features, or 
waterfront views from Bay, Front, Green, Vallejo, Market, Mission, 
Harrison, Steuart, Bryant, Brannan, and Townsend Streets. Create new 
view corridors at Pacific and Greenwich Street. 
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• Conflict with the General Plan’s strong presumption against vacating 
street areas, which is stated in the following policy of the Urban Design 
Element: 


POLICY 2.8  
Maintain a strong presumption against the giving up of street areas for 
private ownership or use, or for construction of public buildings. 


• Conflict with the General Plan’s limit on the extent and permanence of 
street releases, which is stated in the following policy of the Urban Design 
Element: 


POLICY 2.10 
Permit release of street areas, where such release is warranted, only in 
the least extensive and least permanent manner appropriate to each case. 


In its recitations about General Plan compliance, the draft approval motion 
prepared by staff does not identify and discuss the above conflicts.  Until it does, the 
motion is flawed and incomplete, and should not be adopted as written.   


In any event, to avoid the General Plan conflicts mentioned above, we urge that 
the theater structure be relocated out of the Vallejo Street right-of-way, and by a 
sufficient margin to avoid blocking or impeding the General Plan-protected Vallejo 
Street view corridor.  If the theater structure is permitted to remain in its proposed 
location and thus requires vacation of public rights-of-way in conflict with General 
Plan Policy 2.8, pursuant to Policy 2.10, Vallejo Street vacation should be temporary, 
requiring it to revert back to the City, if and when Teatro ZinZanni ends or exits the 
space. 


Glass Enclosure Is Too Large 


 The extent of the above conflicts is made more severe by the large and 
unnecessary size of the glass enclosure relative to the Spiegeltent, which contains the 
actual theater performance area.  As can be seen in project renderings, the glass 
enclosure is materially larger than the Spiegeltent that it is intended to protect.  The 
extent of the General Plan conflicts is made still larger by the significant size of theater 
accessory structures, particularly those in the backstage area. 


The volume of the glass enclosure is more than three times larger than that of 
the Spiegeltent.  This size seems larger than necessary and creates a more severe 
conflict with the General Plan, and thus should be reduced or eliminated. 


Glass Enclosure Is Incompatible With Historic District 


 The theater glass enclosure is not like any other structure in the Northeast 
Waterfront Historic District.  As currently proposed, it is not sufficiently compatible to 
“maintain the scale and basic character of the Northeast Waterfront Historic District” 
(Planning Code, Article 10, Appendix D, Section 1).  This compatibility is particularly 
important given the project's prominent location at the edge of the historic district 
and as seen from the heavily-traveled Embarcadero.  An alternative, more appropriate 
design is needed.  
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A Sufficiently Large Sample of Materials Should be Inspected 


 Prior to approval of a COA, the HPC should ensure that its review of proposed 
exterior materials is based upon on inspection of a sufficiently large sampling of 
actual materials to provide an accurate sense of their in-place appearance.  Given 
their prominence, this is particularly important for the materials to be used in the 
theater glass enclosure and other theater backstage structures that intrude into the 
Vallejo Street view corridor and right of way. 


*   *   * 


We look forward to further discussions with the HPC, Planning staff, and the 
project team about these and other issues that may arise as the planning process 
continues. 


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
 Tim Frye  tim.frye@sfgov.gov 
 Jay Wallace  jwallace@jaywallaceassociates.com 


Supervisor Aaron Peskin, District 3  aaron.peskin@sfgov.org 
 



mailto:aaron.hyland.hpc@gmail.com

mailto:dianematsuda@hotmail.com

mailto:kate.black@sfgov.org

mailto:ellen.hpc@ellenjohnckconsulting.com

mailto:RSEJohns@yahoo.com

mailto:Johnathan.perlman.hpc@gmail.com

mailto:andrew@tefarch.com

mailto:Commissions.Secretary@sfgov.org

mailto:tim.frye@sfgov.gov

mailto:jwallace@jaywallaceassociates.com

mailto:aaron.peskin@sfgov.org



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
Subject: FW: Washington murals.
Date: Monday, March 04, 2019 12:23:08 PM

 
 
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
 

From: Andrew Wolfram <andrew@tomeliotfisch.com> 
Sent: Saturday, March 02, 2019 11:12 AM
To: Ionin, Jonas (CPC) <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>
Subject: Fwd: Washington murals.
 

 

Please forward to rest of HPC
Thanks
Andrew

Begin forwarded message:

From: Richard Rothman <rrothma@pacbell.net>
Date: March 2, 2019 at 8:48:39 AM PST
To: Jackie Fox <foxj639@gmail.com>, Desiree Smith <desiree.smith@sfgov.org>, Tim
Frye <tim.frye@sfgov.org>, Andrew Wolfram <andrew@tefarch.com>
Subject: Washington murals.

Hello,
On Thursday night the mural reflection committee that was set up to talk about the
Arnautoff murals  at George Washington voted that all of his murals should be painted
over.
 
The next step is to send this report to the Board of Education.
 
Best,
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Richard



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
Subject: FW: Preventing and Reporting Sexual Abuse and Harassment at Work
Date: Monday, March 04, 2019 12:22:32 PM
Attachments: Equal-Employment-Opportunity-Policy-Chinese.pdf

Equal-Employment-Opportunity-Policy-English.pdf
Equal-Employment-Opportunity-Policy-Spanish.pdf
image001.png

 
 
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
 

From: HRD Alert (HRD) 
Sent: Monday, March 04, 2019 8:01 AM
Subject: Preventing and Reporting Sexual Abuse and Harassment at Work
 
Dear Colleagues:
 
March is National Women’s History Month. It is a time to celebrate the accomplishments of
women across the nation. While we do, let us think about the great achievements that could
be realized if we ended harassment, including sexual harassment, at work. Sexual harassment
is not a “woman’s problem." The City and County of San Francisco (City) works to provide
every City employee with an environment free from harassment and discrimination. That is
why I’m asking you to join me in reviewing the attached City policy on Equal Employment
Opportunity. The policy is attached in English, Spanish and Chinese.

Personnel officers, please print and deliver this email and the appropriate flyer(s) to your
employees without computers or City email.
 
The policy states that every person has the right to a workplace free from unwelcome
conduct, based on being in a protected class. Harassment, including sexual harassment, is a
form of discrimination. Discrimination can interfere with an employee’s emotional and
physical well-being. The policy also prohibits retaliation against employees who complain
about harassment and discrimination.
 
Supervisors who witness or receive reports of harassment, discrimination, or retaliation have
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One South Van Ness Avenue, 4th Floor ● San Francisco, CA 94103-5413 ● (415) 557-4800 
 


City and County of San Francisco                                        Department of Human Resources  
               Micki Callahan                                                Connecting People with Purpose                    


     Human Resources Director                                                  www.sfdhr.org                                                                                     
                                                                  
                                   
  


 


 


 


 


平等就業機會政策 
 


禁止歧視與騷擾  
基於性別、種族、年齡、宗教、膚色、國籍、祖籍、生理殘疾、(與癌症、癌症病史或基因特徵相關的) 精


神殘疾、愛滋病（HIV/AIDS）狀況、基因資料、婚姻狀況、性取向、性別、性別認同、性別表現、兵役與


退伍狀況，或其他受保護類別，歧視或騷擾三藩市市及縣（市府）所任聘的雇員、求職者或以合同形式為


市府服務的人員，包括監管及非監管的人員，是為法律所禁止及屬違法的。 鑒於本政策而言,「雇員」一


詞包含無薪實習生及志願者。歧視指的是基於他們各自所屬的受保護類別範疇，在雇用條款與條件上，個


別人士遭到的不公平待遇。騷擾指的是不受歡迎並涉及視覺、言語或肢體上的性行徑，這些行爲會讓被騷


擾者實際或意識到其受到保護類別下的騷擾。 


禁止性騷擾 
根據聯邦與州法，性騷擾是違法行為。 聯邦法將性騷擾定義為：不受歡迎及對同性或異性主動提出的性挑


逗，提出獲取性方面的好處的要求及作出其他言語上、肢體上、視覺上或文字上涉及性的行為，情況如下: 


 以明示或暗示的方式順從此類騷擾行爲是雇用的條款或條件;  


 雇員或求職者順從或拒絕此類騷擾行為，會被視爲影響雇員或求職者受雇決定的依據; 或  


 此類騷擾行為具有不合理干擾雇員的工作表現或營造出一個具威嚇性、有敵意或其他使人反感的工


作環境的意圖或影響。  


州法將性騷擾定義為不受歡迎的性挑逗或語言上、視覺上或肢體上具有性本質或其他基於性的行爲。 以下


是性騷擾的例子: 


 要求性方面的好處或不受歡迎的性挑逗;  


 提供工作上的利益，以換取性方面的好處;  


 在提出性挑逗得到負面回應之後作出或遭到威嚇性報復;  


 言語騷擾 (例如：圖像評論、詆毀評論、性暗示或猥褻笑話或電話聯絡);  


 肢體騷擾 (例如：侵犯、妨礙或阻礙舉動、姿勢，或任何人身干擾影響正常工作或活動); 或 


 視覺騷擾 (例如：不懷好意的目光、詆毀性或與性有關的不雅電郵、海報、信件、詩詞、塗鴉、漫


畫、電腦熒幕保護或圖畫)。  
 


禁止報復 


禁止對舉報、提起投訴或反對他或她有合理理由所認定的非法歧視、騷擾或報復行爲，或協助投訴調查的


個人施以報復。 


雇員有責回應及舉報歧視、騷擾及報復 


本部門鼓勵全體雇員舉報歧視、騷擾或報復性行爲，不論此類行爲是否直接針對他們本人或同事。 


若雇員受到基於受保護類別下的歧視、騷擾或報復，監管人員則必須採取懲治措施。若向監管人員作出投


訴，或若監管人員意識到潛在的歧視、騷擾或報復，監管人員則必須立即將此投訴向部門内的平等就業機 


 







 


會處（EEO）或人事人員報告。任何接收到歧視、騷擾或報復的投訴而無作出報告的監管人員，可能會受到


紀律處分。  


各部門必須在知悉投訴的五天内向人力資源部部長報告所有與歧視、騷擾及報復相關的投訴。各部門有責


讓全體雇員了解該項政策以及就該項政策定期培訓雇員。 


 


投訴程序 


任何雇員或求職員認爲他或她遭到歧視、騷擾或報復，即違反了此項政策，則務必立即報告該項事件以及


事件所牽涉的人員。 必須在指控的歧視舉動、騷擾或報復行動發生後的180個公曆日内或個人一意識到侵


犯當天提交投訴。更多資訊或提交投訴，聯絡方式如下： 
 


 雇員的主管或任何其他監管人員或經理; 


 部門内的平等就業機會處（EEO）或人事人員;  


 人力資源部，平等就業機會處（EEO），地址： 1 South Van Ness Avenue,  


4th Floor, San Francisco, CA  94103, 或上網：www.sfdhr.org;  
 平等就業機會處（EEO） 幫助熱線：(415) 557-4900 或 (415) 557-4810 (聽障專線); 或 


 三藩市交通局（SFMTA）雇員亦可致電至(415) 701-4404 或電郵至 EEO@sfmta.com 聯絡 


SFMTA平等就業機會（EEO）主任 Virginia Harmon  


人力資源部部長負責調查以及解決所有與歧視、騷擾及報復有關的投訴。 全部投訴均應(盡量) 保密;應及


時作出回應; 應經由符合資格的人員及時並以公正的方式進行調查(若需要的話); 並應歸檔及記錄。若人


力資源部部長確實經已發生的歧視、騷擾或報復事件，市府將採取適當的補救措施。  


美國平等就業機會委員會（EEOC）以及加州公平就業與住房部（DFEH）亦調查並提起雇用歧視、騷擾及報


復投訴。雇員若認爲自身受到歧視、騷擾或報復，可使用下列聯絡資訊向下述任一機構提交投訴: 


          • EEOC: (800) 669-4000 或聽障專線 (800) 669-6820; 或上網www.eeoc.gov  


          • DFEH: (800) 884-1684 或聽障專線 (800) 700-2320; 或上網 www.dfeh.ca.gov  


 


上述部門提供的補救措施包括雇用或復職、補償欠薪或晉升、罰款或精神損害賠償，以及雇主變更政策或


做法。 


 


紀律處分 


任何雇員、監管或市府代表經發現涉及違反該項政策，將會受到紀律處分，最高懲處包括終止雇用契約。


雇員可能因其所涉及的騷擾行爲獲處分卻並未觸及法例明文定義的騷擾規定，倘若此類行爲重覆或容許繼


續，則可能符合該項定義。 


Para mayor información sobre el hostigamiento en el trabajo: (415) 557-4900. 


更多有關預防工作場所騷擾的資訊，請致電：(415) 557-4900. 


 
Micki Callahan 


人力資源部部長                     重新修訂與發佈 09/2017 
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EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY (EEO) POLICY 
 
Discrimination and Harassment Prohibited  
Discriminating against, or harassing City and County of San Francisco (City) employees, applicants, or persons providing 
services to the City by contract, including supervisory and non-supervisory employees, because of their sex, race, age, religion, 
color, national origin, ancestry, physical disability, mental disability, medical condition (associated with cancer, a history of cancer, 
or genetic characteristics), HIV/AIDS status, genetic information, marital status, sexual orientation, gender, gender identity, 
gender expression, military and veteran status, or other protected category under the law is prohibited and unlawful. For the 
purpose of this policy only, the term “employees” includes unpaid interns and volunteers. Discrimination is the unequal treatment 
of individuals with respect to the terms and conditions of their employment, based on their membership in a protected category. 
Harassment is unwelcome visual, verbal, or physical conduct engaged in on account of a person's actual or perceived 
membership in a protected category.  


 
Sexual Harassment Prohibited 
Sexual harassment is illegal under federal and state law. Federal law defines sexual harassment as unsolicited and unwelcome 
sexual advances, requests for sexual favors and other verbal, physical, visual, or written conduct of a sexual nature directed to 
persons of the same or opposite sex when: 


 submission to such conduct is made explicitly or implicitly as a term or condition of employment;  
 submission to or rejection of such conduct by an employee or applicant is used as a basis for employment decisions 


affecting the employee or applicant; or  
 such conduct has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an employee's work performance or creating an 


intimidating, hostile, or otherwise offensive working environment.  


 
State law defines sexual harassment as unwanted sexual advances or verbal, visual, or physical conduct of either a sexual 
nature, or other conduct based on sex. These are some examples of sexual harassment: 


 requests for sexual favors or unwanted sexual advances;  
 offering employment benefits in exchange for sexual favors;  
 making or threatening reprisals after a negative response to sexual advances;  
 verbal harassment (e.g., graphic comments, derogatory comments, sexually suggestive or obscene jokes or telephone 


calls);  
 physical harassment (e.g., assault, impeding or blocking movement, gestures, or any physical interference with normal 


work or movements); or  
 visual forms of harassment (e.g., leering, derogatory or sexually explicit emails, posters, letters, poems, graffiti, cartoons, 


computer screen savers, or drawings).  


 


Retaliation Prohibited 


Retaliation against an individual who reports, files a complaint of, or otherwise opposes conduct he or she reasonably believes to 


be unlawful discrimination, harassment, or retaliation, or assists in the investigation of a complaint, is also prohibited. 


 


Responsibility for Responding to and Reporting Discrimination, Harassment, and Retaliation  
All employees are encouraged to report discriminatory, harassing, or retaliatory behavior, whether directed at themselves or at 
co-workers.  
 
 
 







 
Supervisory employees are required to take corrective action if employees are subjected to discrimination, harassment, or 
retaliation on the basis of a protected category. If a complaint is made to a supervisor, or if a supervisor becomes aware of 
potential discrimination, harassment, or retaliation, the supervisor must immediately report it to the department's EEO or Human 
Resources personnel. Any supervisor who receives a complaint of discrimination, harassment, or retaliation and fails to report it 
may be subject to disciplinary action.  
 
Departments must report all complaints of discrimination, harassment, and retaliation to the Human Resources Director within 
five days of becoming aware of such complaints. Departments are responsible for ensuring that all employees know of and are 
trained periodically regarding this policy. 
 


Complaint Procedures 
Any employee or applicant who believes he or she has been discriminated against, harassed, or retaliated against in violation of 
this policy should promptly report the incident and the individuals involved. Complaints must be filed within 180 calendar days of 
the date of the alleged discriminatory action, harassment, or retaliatory action, or the date the individual should have first become 
aware of a violation. For information or to file a complaint, contact any of the following: 


 the employee's supervisor or any other supervisor or manager; 
 the department's EEO or Human Resources personnel;  
 the City’s Department of Human Resources, EEO Division located at 1 South Van Ness Avenue,  


4th Floor, San Francisco, CA  94103, or online at www.sfdhr.org;  
 the City’s EEO Helpline at (415) 557-4900 or (415) 557-4810 (TTY); or 
 SFMTA employees may also contact SFMTA’s EEO Officer, Virginia Harmon, at (415) 701-4404 or EEO@sfmta.com 


 
The Human Resources Director is responsible for the investigation and resolution of all discrimination, harassment, and 
retaliation complaints. All complaints are kept confidential (to the extent possible); responded to timely; investigated (if necessary) 
by qualified personnel in a timely and impartial manner; and documented and tracked. If the Human Resources Director 
determines that discrimination, harassment, or retaliation occurred, the City will take appropriate remedial action.  
 
The U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC) and the California Department of Fair Employment and Housing 


(DFEH) also investigate and prosecute employment discrimination, harassment, and retaliation complaints. Employees who 


believe that they have been discriminated against, harassed, or retaliated against may file a complaint with either of these 


agencies using the following contact information: 


          • EEOC: (800) 669-4000 or TTY (800) 669-6820; or online at www.eeoc.gov  


• DFEH: (800) 884-1684 or TTY (800) 700-2320; or online at www.dfeh.ca.gov  


 


Remedies available through these agencies include hiring or reinstatement, back pay or promotion, fines or damages for 


emotional distress, and changes in the policies or practices of the employer. 
 


Discipline 


Any employee, supervisor, or agent of the City found to have engaged in conduct in violation of this policy may be subject to 


disciplinary action, up to and including termination. An employee may be subject to discipline for engaging in harassing conduct 


that does not meet the definition of harassment under the law, but that, if repeated or allowed to continue, might meet that 


definition. 


Para mayor información sobre el hostigamiento en el trabajo: (415) 557-4900. 


 


 
Micki Callahan 


Human Resources Director              Revised and Reissued 09/2017 



http://www.sfdhr.org/

mailto:EEO@sfmta.com

http://www.eeoc.gov/
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POLÍTICA DE IGUALDAD EN LA OPORTUNIDAD DE EMPLEO 


 
Discriminación y Acoso Prohibido 
Discriminar o acosar a empleados, solicitantes o personas que prestan servicios a la Ciudad y Condado de San Francisco 
(Ciudad) bajo contrato, incluyendo supervisores y empleados sin responsabilidad de supervisión, debido a su sexo, raza, edad, 
religión, color, origen nacional, ascendencia, discapacidad física o mental, condición médica (asociada con cáncer, historial de 
cáncer, o características genéticas), condición de VIH/SIDA, información genética, estado civil, orientación sexual, género, 
identidad de género, expresión de género, estado militar y estado veterano, u otra categoría protegida por ley está prohibido y es 
ilegal. Para el propósito de esta política, el término “empleados” incluye a los internos sin goce de sueldo y a los voluntarios, 
únicamente.  Discriminación es el tratamiento desigual a individuos con respecto a los términos y condiciones de su empleo, 
basado en su pertenencia a una categoría protegida.  El acoso es conducta no deseada ya sea visual, verbal o física debido a la 
pertenencia real o percibida de una persona en una categoría protegida.  
 
Acoso Sexual Prohibido 
El acoso sexual es ilegal bajo las leyes federales y estatales. La ley federal define el acoso sexual como avances sexuales no 
solicitados y no deseados, el solicitar favores sexuales y otra conducta de una naturaleza sexual ya sea verbal, física, visual o 
escrita dirigida a las personas del sexo opuesto o del mismo sexo cuando: 


● la sumisión a tal conducta es hecha ya sea explícita o implícitamente como un término o condición de empleo; 
● la sumisión a/o rechazo de dicha conducta por parte de un empleado o solicitante se utiliza como base para tomar 


decisiones laborales afectando al empleado o solicitante, o 
● tal conducta tiene el propósito o efecto de interferir irrazonablemente con el desempeño laboral de un empleado o 


crea un ambiente de trabajo intimidante, hostil  o de otra manera ofensivo. 


La ley estatal define el acoso sexual como avances sexuales no deseados o conducta verbal, visual o física de una naturaleza 
sexual. Estos son algunos ejemplos de acoso sexual: 


● solicitud de favores sexuales o avances sexuales no deseados; 
● ofrecer beneficios laborales a cambio de favores sexuales; 
● amenazar con represalias después de una respuesta negativa a los avances sexuales; 
● acoso verbal (por ejemplo: comentarios gráficos, comentarios despectivos, bromas sexualmente sugestivas u 


obscenas o llamadas telefónicas); 
● acoso físico (por ejemplo: asalto, impedir o bloquear el movimiento, gestos o cualquier interferencia física con el 


trabajo normal o movimiento); o  
● Las formas de acoso visual (por ejemplo: miradas lascivas, correos electrónicos despectivos o sexualmente 


explícitos, carteles, cartas, poemas, graffiti, dibujos animados, protectores de pantalla de la computadora o dibujos). 
 
La Represalia Prohibida 
La represalia contra un individuo que denuncia el acoso, presenta una queja de acoso, o que de otra manera se opone a la 
conducta que razonablemente cree que es discriminación ilegal, acoso o represalias, o ayuda en una investigación de una 
queja, también está prohibida. 
 
La Responsabilidad de Responder a/y Denunciar la Discriminación, el Acoso, y la Represalia 
Se incita a todos los empleados a denunciar el acoso, comportamiento discriminatorio o de represalia, ya sea dirigida a ellos 
mismos o a sus compañeros de trabajo. Los supervisores están obligados a tomar medidas correctivas si los empleados están 
sometidos al acoso, la discriminación o la represalia en base de una categoría protegida. 
 
 
 







 
Si a un supervisor se le presenta una queja de acoso, o el supervisor se entera de alguna discriminación, acoso o represalia, el 
supervisor debe reportarlo inmediatamente a la Oficina de Igualdad en la Oportunidad de Empleo (EEO) del departamento o al 
jefe de personal. Cualquier supervisor que recibe una queja de acoso, discriminación o represalia y no la reporta puede ser 
sujeto a acción disciplinaria. Los departamentos deben reportar todas las denuncias de acoso, discriminación y represalia al 
Director de Recursos Humanos dentro de cinco días que se enteraron de tales quejas. Los departamentos son responsables de 
asegurar que todos los empleados tengan conocimiento de y que reciban capacitación periódica relacionada con esta política. 
 
Procedimientos de Queja 
Cualquier empleado que cree que él o ella ha sido discriminado, acosado o recibido represalias en violación de esta política 
debe denunciar rápidamente los hechos del incidente y las personas involucradas. Las quejas deben ser presentadas 180 días 
de la fecha de la acción discriminatoria, de acoso o represalia o la fecha cuando el individuo primero debió estar enterado de 
una violación. Para mayor información o para presentar una queja, comuníquese con cualquiera de los siguientes: 
 


● El supervisor del empleado u otro superior;  
● El oficial del departamento de EEO o el jefe de Recursos Humanos;  
● La División de la Ciudad de EEO está en el Departamento de Recursos Humanos ubicado en 1 South Van Ness 


Avenue, piso 4, San Francisco, CA 94103 o en línea en: www.sfdhr.org; 
● La Línea de Ayuda de EEO es (415) 557-4900 o (415) 557-4810 (TTY); o 
● Empleados de SFMTA también pueden comunicarse con la representante EEO de la SFMTA, Virginia Harmon, al 


(415) 701-4404 o EEO@sfmta.com. 
  


La Directora de Recursos Humanos es responsable por la investigación y resolución de todas las quejas de discriminación, 
acoso y represalias. Todas las quejas son confidenciales (a la medida de lo posible); contestadas oportunamente; investigadas 
(si es necesario) por personal calificado de manera oportuna e imparcial; documentadas y seguidas. Si la Directora de Recursos 
Humanos determina que el acoso, la discriminación, o represalia ha sucedido, la Ciudad tomará las medidas correctivas 
apropiadas. 


U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC) (EE.UU. La Comisión de Igualdad en la Oportunidad de Empleo) y el 
California Department of Fair Employment and Housing (DFEH) (Departamento de California de Empleo y Vivienda Justa) 
también investigan y enjuician denuncias de acoso, la discriminación, y  represalia en el empleo. Los empleados que creen que 
han sido acosados,  discriminados, o represaliado pueden presentar una queja comunicándose con cualquiera de éstas 
agencias utilizando la siguiente  información: 


● EEOC: (800) 669-4000 o TTY (800) 669-6820, o en línea en www.eeoc.gov  
● DFEH: (800) 884-1684 o TTY (800) 700-2320, o en línea en www.dfeh.ca.gov 


Los soluciones disponibles a través de estas agencias incluyen la contratación o la reincorporación laboral, el pago retroactivo o 
ascenso, multas o daños y perjuicios por angustia emocional, y cambios a las políticas o prácticas del empleador. 


Disciplina 
Cualquier empleado, supervisor o agente de la Ciudad  que se le compruebe que participó en acoso ilegal, discriminación o 
represalia, puede ser sujeto a acción disciplinaria hasta e incluyendo el despido. Un empleado puede ser sujeto a medidas 
disciplinarias por participar en conducta de acoso que no cumple con la definición de acoso bajo las leyes federales y estatales, 
pero que si se repite o permite que continúe podría satisfacer dicha definición. 


Para mayor información sobre la discriminación, el acoso y represalias en el trabajo: (415) 557-4900. 
 


Micki Callahan 
Directora de Recursos Humanos                                              Revisado y Reeditado 9/2017 
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special responsibilities. They must immediately report these complaints to the department
personnel officer, department EEO Manager, or the Department of Human Resources EEO
Division. Employees who have been harassed, or have seen this conduct, should report it to
any supervisor, department personnel officer, department EEO officer or the Department of
Human Resources EEO Division. Below is the link to DHR‘s EEO Division website for contact
information, policies, and other resources:
 
http://sfdhr.org/equal-employment-opportunity

Thank you for reviewing the policy, and for your commitment to a harassment-free workplace.
 
 
 
Sincerely,
 
 

Micki Callahan
Human Resources Director
Department of Human Resources

One South Van Ness Ave., 4th Floor
San Francisco, CA 94103
Website:  www.sfdhr.org

Connecting People with Purpose

 
 
Please do not reply to this message. Replies to this message are routed to an unmonitored mailbox. 

 
 
 

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
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES NEW WATERFRONT SITE AS PART OF

1,000 BED SHELTER PLAN
Date: Monday, March 04, 2019 12:22:04 PM
Attachments: 3.4.19 Seawall Lot 330.pdf

 
 
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
Sent: Monday, March 04, 2019 8:16 AM
To: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES NEW WATERFRONT SITE AS
PART OF 1,000 BED SHELTER PLAN
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Monday, March 4, 2019
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131
 

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES NEW

WATERFRONT SITE AS PART OF 1,000 BED SHELTER PLAN
Mayor proposes site on Embarcadero for 200 bed SAFE Navigation Center to provide shelter
and services for homeless residents, particularly those living on the waterfront for four years

 
San Francisco, CA — Today Mayor London N. Breed announced a proposal to build a new
200-bed SAFE Navigation Center on the San Francisco waterfront to provide temporary
housing and services for unsheltered residents. The site, at Seawall Lot 330 on the
Embarcadero, is currently a parking lot across the street from Piers 30-32 and is owned by the
Port of San Francisco.
 
In October, Mayor Breed announced a plan to add 1,000 new shelter beds by 2020, with 500
of them being built by this summer. Since then, the City has added 212 new beds at two new
Navigation Centers and City staff has been working to identify more sites. The proposed
waterfront site would be the Mayor’s first SAFE Navigation Center, which take the best
practices and lessons learned from prior Navigation Centers, allowing guests to bring their
partners, pets, and belongings with them and providing support to connect residents with
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SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94102-4681 


TELEPHONE: (415) 554-6141 


 


 


FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE: 


Monday, March 4, 2019 


Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131 


 


*** PRESS RELEASE *** 


MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES NEW WATERFRONT 


SITE AS PART OF 1,000 BED SHELTER PLAN 
Mayor proposes site on Embarcadero for 200 bed SAFE Navigation Center to provide shelter 


and services for homeless residents, particularly those living on the waterfront for four years 
 


San Francisco, CA — Today Mayor London N. Breed announced a proposal to build a new 


200-bed SAFE Navigation Center on the San Francisco waterfront to provide temporary housing 


and services for unsheltered residents. The site, at Seawall Lot 330 on the Embarcadero, is 


currently a parking lot across the street from Piers 30-32 and is owned by the Port of San 


Francisco.  


 


In October, Mayor Breed announced a plan to add 1,000 new shelter beds by 2020, with 500 of 


them being built by this summer. Since then, the City has added 212 new beds at two new 


Navigation Centers and City staff has been working to identify more sites. The proposed 


waterfront site would be the Mayor’s first SAFE Navigation Center, which take the best 


practices and lessons learned from prior Navigation Centers, allowing guests to bring their 


partners, pets, and belongings with them and providing support to connect residents with services 


and permanent housing in a setting with 24/7 access. SAFE Navigation Centers are designed to 


be rapidly implementable and more cost-effective than traditional navigation centers. SAFE 


Navigation Centers will accept placements with a priority for people in the vicinity of the site, 


and will employ robust good neighbor policies and 24-hour security. 


 


“To help those living on our streets, we need to meet people with shelters and services where 


they are,” said Mayor Breed. “The waterfront has a number of challenges around homelessness, 


and by bringing this SAFE Navigation Center to the area, we can work to address these 


challenges and get our unsheltered residents on a path to housing and stability.”   


 


The funding for the SAFE Navigation Center on the Embarcadero will come from the recently 


approved Educational Revenue Augmentation Fund (ERAF) funding, which will provide both 


capital and operational costs. The proposal is to use this location for four years while the Port 


works with the community on the long-term development of the site.  Mayor Breed’s ordinance 


to declare a Shelter Crisis, which will help expedite the creation of new shelters citywide, was 


approved by both the Building Inspection Commission and the Planning Commission last week 


and is pending at the Board of Supervisors.  


 


“This SAFE Navigation Center is an opportunity for us to address the urgent and growing 


challenge of homelessness in the Rincon Hill, South Beach and Mission Bay communities,” said 


Supervisor Matt Haney, who represents District 6 on the Board of Supervisors. “We know that 
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ending street homelessness requires us to build more shelter beds with high-quality wrap around 


services. I’m committed to working closely with residents, businesses, and Mayor Breed to 


ensure that we move forward collaboratively in a way that addresses community needs and 


improves quality of life for everyone in the neighborhood.” 


 


The Port Commission will hold an informational hearing on the use of Seawall Lot 330 as a 


SAFE Navigation Center in March. The Department of Homelessness and Supportive Housing 


and the Port will also host community meetings on the proposal. The Port Commission will 


consider action in April. If approved by the Port Commission, San Francisco Public Works will 


construct the facility, which will open by the end of the summer.  


 


“The Department of Homelessness and Supportive Housing and the Port had a very positive 


experience working with the Dogpatch community, including the Dogpatch Neighborhood 


Association, on the Central Waterfront Navigation Center,” said Elaine Forbes, Executive 


Director of the Port of San Francisco. “I look forward to working with the South Beach 


community and am proud the Port can play a part in supporting Mayor Breed’s efforts to tackle 


the crisis of homelessness in our City.” 


 


The Dogpatch Neighborhood Association recently voted to urge the Department of 


Homelessness and Supportive Housing and the Port to extend the term of the Central Waterfront 


Navigation Center beyond the initial three-year term because the facility has become a vital part 


of the neighborhood. 


 


The City, through the Department of Homelessness and Supportive Housing, currently offers 


temporary shelter to 2,500 people per night through traditional shelters, stabilization beds, 


Navigation Centers and transitional housing. In addition, they maintain housing for 9,000 people 


through permanent supportive housing. 


 


“Seawall Lot 330 offers an excellent opportunity to create a SAFE Navigation Center to serve 


the needs of homeless people in northeastern San Francisco,” said Jeff Kositsky, Director of the 


Department of Homelessness and Supportive Housing. “We hope to replicate the successful 


partnership we had with the Port and the Dogpatch community at our Central Waterfront site.” 


 


 







services and permanent housing in a setting with 24/7 access. SAFE Navigation Centers are
designed to be rapidly implementable and more cost-effective than traditional navigation
centers. SAFE Navigation Centers will accept placements with a priority for people in the
vicinity of the site, and will employ robust good neighbor policies and 24-hour security.
 
“To help those living on our streets, we need to meet people with shelters and services where
they are,” said Mayor Breed. “The waterfront has a number of challenges around
homelessness, and by bringing this SAFE Navigation Center to the area, we can work to
address these challenges and get our unsheltered residents on a path to housing and stability.” 
 
The funding for the SAFE Navigation Center on the Embarcadero will come from the recently
approved Educational Revenue Augmentation Fund (ERAF) funding, which will provide both
capital and operational costs. The proposal is to use this location for four years while the Port
works with the community on the long-term development of the site.  Mayor Breed’s
ordinance to declare a Shelter Crisis, which will help expedite the creation of new shelters
citywide, was approved by both the Building Inspection Commission and the Planning
Commission last week and is pending at the Board of Supervisors.
 
“This SAFE Navigation Center is an opportunity for us to address the urgent and growing
challenge of homelessness in the Rincon Hill, South Beach and Mission Bay communities,”
said Supervisor Matt Haney, who represents District 6 on the Board of Supervisors. “We know
that ending street homelessness requires us to build more shelter beds with high-quality wrap
around services. I’m committed to working closely with residents, businesses, and Mayor
Breed to ensure that we move forward collaboratively in a way that addresses community
needs and improves quality of life for everyone in the neighborhood.”
 
The Port Commission will hold an informational hearing on the use of Seawall Lot 330 as a
SAFE Navigation Center in March. The Department of Homelessness and Supportive Housing
and the Port will also host community meetings on the proposal. The Port Commission will
consider action in April. If approved by the Port Commission, San Francisco Public Works
will construct the facility, which will open by the end of the summer.
 
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
community and am proud the Port can play a part in supporting Mayor Breed’s efforts to
tackle the crisis of homelessness in our City.”
 
The Dogpatch Neighborhood Association recently voted to urge the Department of
Homelessness and Supportive Housing and the Port to extend the term of the Central
Waterfront Navigation Center beyond the initial three-year term because the facility has
become a vital part of the neighborhood.
 
The City, through the Department of Homelessness and Supportive Housing, currently offers
temporary shelter to 2,500 people per night through traditional shelters, stabilization beds,
Navigation Centers and transitional housing. In addition, they maintain housing for 9,000
people through permanent supportive housing.
 
“Seawall Lot 330 offers an excellent opportunity to create a SAFE Navigation Center to serve



the needs of homeless people in northeastern San Francisco,” said Jeff Kositsky, Director of
the Department of Homelessness and Supportive Housing. “We hope to replicate the
successful partnership we had with the Port and the Dogpatch community at our Central
Waterfront site.”
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
Subject: FW: *** STATEMENT*** MAYOR LONDON BREED ON PROGRESS OF VOLUNTARY AGREEMENT FOR TUOLUMNE

RIVER
Date: Friday, March 01, 2019 2:02:28 PM
Attachments: 03.01.19 Voluntary Agreement Settlement.pdf

 
 
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
Sent: Friday, March 01, 2019 2:01 PM
To: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** STATEMENT*** MAYOR LONDON BREED ON PROGRESS OF VOLUNTARY AGREEMENT
FOR TUOLUMNE RIVER
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Friday, March 1, 2019
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131
 
 

*** STATEMENT***
MAYOR LONDON BREED ON PROGRESS OF VOLUNTARY

AGREEMENT FOR TUOLUMNE RIVER
 

San Francisco, CA— Mayor London Breed has issued the following statement on the updated
Voluntary Agreement solution for Tuolumne River submitted to the State Water Resources
Control Board. The City and its partners developed the agreement as an alternative to the
updated Bay Delta Plan approved by the State Water Resources Control Board in December.
 
“Today, San Francisco joined a broad coalition of stakeholders in support of advancing the
Voluntary Agreement solution for the Tuolumne River. The plans laid out today, which
include specific costs and timelines for restoration projects on the river, are further evidence
that we remain fully committed to that cause.
 
I have always maintained that a Voluntary Agreement between stakeholders is the best option
to quickly advance solutions that we know will promote a healthy ecosystem that supports the
fish and wildlife on the Tuolumne River.
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


Voluntary Agreement solution for the Tuolumne River. The plans laid out today, which include 


specific costs and timelines for restoration projects on the river, are further evidence that we 


remain fully committed to that cause.  


 


I have always maintained that a Voluntary Agreement between stakeholders is the best option to 


quickly advance solutions that we know will promote a healthy ecosystem that supports the fish 


and wildlife on the Tuolumne River.  


 


There is still much more work to be done and I pledge that San Francisco will continue our 


commitment to work with the State Water Board and our environmental stakeholders.  


 


I want to thank Governor Gavin Newsom and his team for their leadership in advancing these 


important and complex discussions over the past two months. I also want to thank Senator 


Dianne Feinstein, various environmental organizations, the irrigation districts, and numerous 


other public and private entities for their support.” 


  
 


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
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES COMMUNITY TOWN HALLS AND

NEIGHBORHOOD OFFICE HOURS
Date: Friday, March 01, 2019 11:00:36 AM
Attachments: 2.28.19 Town Halls.pdf

 
 
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
Sent: Thursday, February 28, 2019 2:40 PM
To: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES COMMUNITY TOWN HALLS
AND NEIGHBORHOOD OFFICE HOURS
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Thursday, February 28, 2019
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131
 

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES COMMUNITY
TOWN HALLS AND NEIGHBORHOOD OFFICE HOURS

Over the coming months, Mayor Breed will continue her outreach to residents throughout San
Francisco to hear and address their concerns about the issues facing the City

 
San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today announced a series of upcoming Town
Halls to discuss issues of importance directly with residents of San Francisco.
 
Additionally, Mayor Breed’s Office of Neighborhood Services (MONS) will begin holding
regular office hours in neighborhoods throughout San Francisco to make it easier for residents
to have direct access to her office and receive help navigating the City government.
 
“I hear all the time from people who feel like City Hall is disconnected from what is
happening in our neighborhoods, which is why I spend so much time out in our communities
meeting with people directly,” said Mayor Breed. “Starting today, we are taking that to the
next level. Whether it is our series of Town Halls or my staff’s community office hours, my
office is going to meet people where they are to help with whatever issue they may have.”
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1 DR. CARLTON B. GOODLETT PLACE, ROOM 200 
SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94102-4681 


TELEPHONE: (415) 554-6141 


 


 


FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE: 


Thursday, February 28, 2019 


Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131 


 


*** PRESS RELEASE *** 


MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES COMMUNITY TOWN 


HALLS AND NEIGHBORHOOD OFFICE HOURS 
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


regular office hours in neighborhoods throughout San Francisco to make it easier for residents to 


have direct access to her office and receive help navigating the City government. 


 


“I hear all the time from people who feel like City Hall is disconnected from what is happening 


in our neighborhoods, which is why I spend so much time out in our communities meeting with 


people directly,” said Mayor Breed. “Starting today, we are taking that to the next level. Whether 


it is our series of Town Halls or my staff’s community office hours, my office is going to meet 


people where they are to help with whatever issue they may have.” 


 


The first Town Hall discussion is scheduled for Monday, March 11th at 6:30pm at the San 


Francisco LGBT Center, located at 1800 Market Street. The second Town Hall will be held in 


Mission Bay on Monday, May 6th. Residents can RSVP at SFMayor.org/townhall. 


 


Mayor Breed’s Office of Neighborhood Services will begin holding regular office hours with 


staff representatives and trained volunteers, beginning in March in the Richmond, Sunset, 


Bayview Hunters Point, and Excelsior districts and later expanding citywide. For more 


information, visit SFMayor.org/mons. 


 


### 



https://sfmayor.org/townhall

https://sfmayor.org/mons





 
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
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES PERMITTING OF HUNDREDS OF NEW IN-

LAW UNITS, CLEARANCE OF APPLICATION BACKLOG
Date: Thursday, February 28, 2019 11:51:55 AM
Attachments: 2.28.19 ADU Six Month Progress.pdf

 
 
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
Sent: Thursday, February 28, 2019 11:50 AM
To: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES PERMITTING OF HUNDREDS
OF NEW IN-LAW UNITS, CLEARANCE OF APPLICATION BACKLOG
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Thursday, February 28, 2019
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131
 

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES PERMITTING OF

HUNDREDS OF NEW IN-LAW UNITS, CLEARANCE OF
APPLICATION BACKLOG

In the six months since Mayor Breed issued Executive Directive to accelerate the approval of
in-law units, the city has permitted more in-law units than in the previous three years

combined
 

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today announced that in the six months since
she issued an Executive Directive to accelerate the approvals of Accessory Dwelling Units
(ADUs), also known as in-law units, the City has cleared its application backlog. As a result of
this action, the City permitted more in-law units than it did in the previous three years when
the City’s in-law program was first launched.
 
The Executive Directive Mayor Breed issued at the end of August called for the backlog of
919 units waiting for approval to be cleared and for all new applications to acted on within
four months. It also called on City departments to set clear, objective code standards, and work
to improve the application process for people looking to build in-law units. Since then, 439 of
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
In the six months since Mayor Breed issued Executive Directive to accelerate the approval of in-


law units, the city has permitted more in-law units than in the previous three years combined 


 


San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today announced that in the six months since 


she issued an Executive Directive to accelerate the approvals of Accessory Dwelling Units 


(ADUs), also known as in-law units, the City has cleared its application backlog. As a result of 


this action, the City permitted more in-law units than it did in the previous three years when the 


City’s in-law program was first launched.  


 


The Executive Directive Mayor Breed issued at the end of August called for the backlog of 919 


units waiting for approval to be cleared and for all new applications to acted on within four 


months. It also called on City departments to set clear, objective code standards, and work to 


improve the application process for people looking to build in-law units. Since then, 439 of the 


backlogged in-law units have been permitted, over 90% of which are subject to rent-control, and 


the rest of the applications have been reviewed by the relevant departments and are awaiting 


responses from the applicants.  


 


“We have made good progress to get this housing approved faster, and we will continue to work 


to encourage applicants to come forward to build new in-law units,” said Mayor London Breed. 


“This is just a first step. I will not let our bureaucracy stand in the way of building more housing, 


especially new rent-controlled housing, because we need more places for people to live in San 


Francisco. Whether it’s streamlining the approval process or eliminating permitting fees, we can 


and will do more to get more housing built in our neighborhoods.”  


 


Since 2014, the City departments involved in permitting housing did not have clear and 


consistent standards on what is needed to add new ADU units to existing single family homes 


and apartment buildings. Instead, departments preferred to handle these complex applications on 


a case-by-case basis, resulting in unnecessarily long review periods, inconsistencies in direction 


to project applicants, and a large backlog of permit applications.  


 
Since the Executive Directive was issued, the City has received applications for 206 new units, 


all of which were reviewed within the four-month timeframe. Of those new applications, 18 units 


have so far been approved, while the remainder have been reviewed and are awaiting responses 


from the applicants. Mayor Breed made the announcement today at a Mission Housing 







OFFICE OF THE MAYOR   LONDON N.  BREED  
 SAN FRANCISCO                                                                    MAYOR  
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TELEPHONE: (415) 554-6141 


 


 


Development Corp. property where new in-law units are planned to be created from former 


garages. 


 


“Mission Housing is excited to lead the charge for the Affordable Housing Community as we 


increase our affordable housing stock by what could be hundreds of new units converted from 


our existing Garages,” said Sam Moss, Executive Director of Mission Housing. “During times 


such as these, in the midst of this housing shortage crisis, it’s important that every neighborhood 


prioritizes new housing, and thanks to Mayor Breed’s leadership we’re one step closer to solving 


the housing crisis. Mission Housing Development Corp. is in the business of housing San 


Francisco’s low income community not its cars.” 


 


As part of the Mayor’s acceleration effort, several process improvements were made by the City 


departments involved in issuing permit approvals. A streamlined “roundtable” review process 


was introduced where multiple reviewing departments, including the Planning Department, 


Department of Building Inspection (DBI), Fire Department, San Francisco Public Utilities 


Commission, and the Department of Public Works came together concurrently to review 


applications. This improvement allowed all agencies to issue comments or requests for plan 


revisions to ADU applicants all at once, instead of the former linear process. 


 


Efforts to clarify and expedite the application process have benefited from the addition of public 


services and documents now available to applicants, including:  


 Optional meetings before filing with the Planning, Building, and Fire Departments, 


allowing for early multi-agency collaboration and identification of red flags;  


 Public information sessions on ADUs for design professionals and homeowners; 


 Dedicated department staff to provide informative and consistent advice to applicants; 


 Both new and updated public information documents, including a first-ever multi-agency 


“ADU Checklist” to outline all requirements and submittal guidelines for each agency;  


 An updated “ADU Handbook” to reflect legislative updates and requirements for 


permitting. 


 


The Mayor recently introduced legislation to eliminate DBI permitting fees for ADUs and 100% 


affordable housing projects. Permitting fees are a significant part of ADU project costs and fees 


on 100% affordable housing can range upwards of $100,000-$150,000 per project.  


 


"We are happy to see Mayor Breed and Mission Housing continue to find ways to increase 


affordable housing opportunities," said Dora Orante on behalf of the tenants at Abel Gonzales. 


"We're also grateful for the creative ways housing can be designed to help others live in one of 


these units." 


 


Further information about the City of San Francisco’s Accessory Dwelling Unit program is 


available online at sfdbi.org/adu.  


 


 


### 
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the backlogged in-law units have been permitted, over 90% of which are subject to rent-
control, and the rest of the applications have been reviewed by the relevant departments and
are awaiting responses from the applicants.
 
“We have made good progress to get this housing approved faster, and we will continue to
work to encourage applicants to come forward to build new in-law units,” said Mayor London
Breed. “This is just a first step. I will not let our bureaucracy stand in the way of building
more housing, especially new rent-controlled housing, because we need more places for
people to live in San Francisco. Whether it’s streamlining the approval process or eliminating
permitting fees, we can and will do more to get more housing built in our neighborhoods.”
 
Since 2014, the City departments involved in permitting housing did not have clear and
consistent standards on what is needed to add new ADU units to existing single family homes
and apartment buildings. Instead, departments preferred to handle these complex applications
on a case-by-case basis, resulting in unnecessarily long review periods, inconsistencies in
direction to project applicants, and a large backlog of permit applications.
 
Since the Executive Directive was issued, the City has received applications for 206 new units,
all of which were reviewed within the four-month timeframe. Of those new applications, 18
units have so far been approved, while the remainder have been reviewed and are awaiting
responses from the applicants. Mayor Breed made the announcement today at a Mission
Housing Development Corp. property where new in-law units are planned to be created from
former garages.
 
“Mission Housing is excited to lead the charge for the Affordable Housing Community as we
increase our affordable housing stock by what could be hundreds of new units converted from
our existing Garages,” said Sam Moss, Executive Director of Mission Housing. “During times
such as these, in the midst of this housing shortage crisis, it’s important that every
neighborhood prioritizes new housing, and thanks to Mayor Breed’s leadership we’re one step
closer to solving the housing crisis. Mission Housing Development Corp. is in the business of
housing San Francisco’s low income community, not its cars.”
 
As part of the Mayor’s acceleration effort, several process improvements were made by the
City departments involved in issuing permit approvals. A streamlined “roundtable” review
process was introduced where multiple reviewing departments, including the Planning
Department, Department of Building Inspection (DBI), Fire Department, San Francisco Public
Utilities Commission, and the Department of Public Works came together concurrently to
review applications. This improvement allowed all agencies to issue comments or requests for
plan revisions to ADU applicants at once, instead of the former linear process.
 
Efforts to clarify and expedite the application process have benefited from the addition of
public services and documents now available to applicants, including:

Optional meetings before filing with the Planning, Building, and Fire Departments,
allowing for early multi-agency collaboration and identification of red flags;
Public information sessions on ADUs for design professionals and homeowners;
Dedicated department staff to provide informative and consistent advice to applicants;
Both new and updated public information documents, including a first-ever multi-
agency “ADU Checklist” to outline all requirements and submittal guidelines for each
agency;



An updated “ADU Handbook” to reflect legislative updates and requirements for
permitting.

 
The Mayor recently introduced legislation to eliminate DBI permitting fees for ADUs and
100% affordable housing projects. Permitting fees are a significant part of ADU project costs
and fees on 100% affordable housing can range upwards of $100,000-$150,000 per project.
 
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
Date: Thursday, February 28, 2019 10:13:46 AM
Attachments: 2016-014870ENV-CEQA Checklist with PTR.pdf

2018-014945ENV-CEQA Checklist and PTR Form.pdf

 
 
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
Sent: Wednesday, February 27, 2019 3:55 PM
To: CTYPLN - COMMISSION SECRETARY <CPC.COMMISSIONSECRETARY@sfgov.org>
Subject: Categorical Exemptions
 

Hello,
 
Please forward the attached to the HPC Commissioners.
 
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


736 Hyde Street


Block/Lot(s)


Project description for Planning Department approval.


Permit No.


Addition/ 


Alteration


Demolition (requires HRE for 


Category B Building)


New 


Construction


The proposed project site is an approximate 2,187-square-foot (sf), rectangular-shaped lot located on the east 


side of Hyde Street within the block bounded by Sutter Street, Hyde Street, Post Street and Leavenworth Street 


in the Downtown/Civic Center Neighborhood. It is also located within the National Register-Lower Nob Hill 


Apartment Hotel Historic District. The single lot is 25 feet in width and extends east a distance of about 87.5 feet 


from the front property line at Hyde Street to the rear property line. The paved lot is currently vacant and used for 


private automobile parking.


The proposed project would construct a new 5-story, 50-foot tall, 8,040-gross-square-foot (gsf), multi-family 


residential building containing nine dwelling units. Access to the building’s dwelling units would be via entry on 


Hyde Street. The project would provide 375 sf of rear yard open area as usable common open space for seven 


units and about 380 sf of private open space that would be provided for two units at a proposed roof deck. No 


vehicle parking is proposed. The project would provide nine, class 1 residential bicycle parking spaces accessed 


through the lobby on the first floor. The project would request the SFMTA to install two class 2 on-street bicycle 


spaces in a dual bike rack on Hyde Street. One existing curb cut would be


CONTINUED ON ADDITIONAL PAGE


Case No.


2016-014870ENV


0300010


201706129054


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


Comments and Planner Signature (optional): Sherie George


Please see attached CEQA IMPACTS page.







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


See Preservation Team Review form dated 1/29/2019 for more detailed description how the proposed 


project is compatible with the character of the historic district.


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


Preservation Planner Signature: Justin Greving


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


Sherie George


02/25/2019


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







Full Project Description
The proposed project site is an approximate 2,187-square-foot (sf), rectangular-shaped lot located on the east 


side of Hyde Street within the block bounded by Sutter Street, Hyde Street, Post Street and Leavenworth Street 


in the Downtown/Civic Center Neighborhood. It is also located within the National Register-Lower Nob Hill 


Apartment Hotel Historic District. The single lot is 25 feet in width and extends east a distance of about 87.5 


feet from the front property line at Hyde Street to the rear property line. The paved lot is currently vacant and 


used for private automobile parking.


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


vehicle parking is proposed. The project would provide nine, class 1 residential bicycle parking spaces 


accessed through the lobby on the first floor. The project would request the SFMTA to install two class 2 


on-street bicycle spaces in a dual bike rack on Hyde Street. One existing curb cut would be removed, and two 


new street trees would be provided on Hyde Street.


The project would require excavation of approximately 150 cubic yards of soil for grading and construction of 


the main structural mat slab foundation. Additional support would be gained by drilled-in-place concrete piers 


extending beyond the loose near surface soils. Excavation depths across the building site would be about 3 


feet. The anticipated pier depths are estimated to be in the order of at least 15 feet into competent materials. 


Construction activities would be completed in succeeding phases over approximately 15 months.







 


 
CEQA IMPACTS CONTINUED  
 
Hazardous Materials. A Phase 1 Environmental Site Assessment (site assessment) was completed in June 
2017 by John Carver Consulting.1 The project sponsor enrolled in the Maher Ordinance program (Article 22A 
of the health code) through the Department of Public Health (health department) in August 2017.2 An approval 
of the site assessment for the proposed project was issued on March 6, 2018 by the health department.3 This 
approval memo requested additional information from the project sponsor and a site characterization workplan 
be submitted to the health department. A Workplan for Subsurface Investigation was completed in March 2018 
by John Carver Consulting.4 The project sponsor received approval of the site characterization work plan in 
April 2, 2018 from the health department.5    
 
Transportation. The project site is currently used as a private parking lot. The proposed project would 
construct a new residential building containing nine dwelling units. Pedestrian access would be located from 
Hyde Street. There would be no vehicle access or off-street parking constructed as part of the proposed 
project. The department completed a Transportation Study Determination on December 5, 2016 and concluded 
a transportation impact study would not be required for the proposed project.6 The proposed project was 
analyzed under CEQA section 20199 and meets the screening criteria of a project that would not result in a 
significant transportation impact under the vehicle miles traveled metric, either individually or cumulatively.7 
NO FURTHER REVIEW REQUIRED. 
 
Noise. Proposed project construction activities would temporarily and intermittently increase noise and 
possibly vibration levels around the project site throughout the construction period. Such occurrences would 
be limited to certain hours of the day. Construction noise is regulated by the San Francisco Noise Ordinance 
(Article 29 of the City Police Code). Use of vibration construction equipment/devices, or substantial, heavy 
sources of vibration for construction is not proposed.8 NO FURTHER REVIEW REQUIRED. 
 
Archeological Resources. A Geotechnical Investigation was prepared in August 2017 by GeoForensics, Inc.9 
An Environmental Planning Preliminary Archeological Review completed on November 27, 2017 determined 
that no CEQA-significant archeological resources are expected within the project-affected soils.10 NO 
FURTHER REVIEW REQUIRED.  


 
Historic Resources: A Historic Resource Evaluation Part 2 was prepared by Tim Kelley Consulting, LLC in 
June 2016.11 The department completed a Preservation Team Review Form on January 29, 2019 and 
determined that new work will be compatible with, and will not affect, the integrity of the National Register-
Lower Nob Hill Apartment Hotel Historic District.12 NO FURTHER REVIEW REQUIRED. 
 
Neighborhood Notice. A Notice of Project Receiving Environmental Review was sent on November 29, 2017, 
to owners and occupants within 300 feet of the project site. No public comment concerning the environmental 
effects of the proposed project was received.  


                                                
1John Carver Consulting, Phase 1 Environmental Site Assessment – 736 Hyde Street, San Francisco, June 19, 2017. 
2 San Francisco Department of Public Health, Maher Ordinance Application for 736 Hyde Street, San Francisco, August 7, 2017. 
3 San Francisco Department of Public Health, Contaminated Sites Assessment and Mitigation Program, Phase 1 Environmental 
Site Assessment Approval, 736 Hyde Street, EHB-SAM Case No. 1620, February 28, 2018.  
4 John Carver Consulting, Work Plan for Subsurface Investigation, 736 Hyde Street, San Francisco, March 30, 2018. 
5 San Francisco Department of Public Health, Contaminated Sites Assessment and Mitigation Program, Work Plan for 
Subsurface Investigation Approval, 736 Hyde Street, EHB-SAM Case No. 1620, April 2, 2018. 
6 San Francisco Planning Department, Transportation Study Determination Request, Case No. 2016-014870ENV, December 5, 
2016. 
7 San Francisco Planning Department. Eligibility Checklist: CEQA Section 21099 – Modernization of Transportation Analysis for 
736 Hyde Street, May 5, 2018. 
8 San Francisco Planning Department, Air Quality and Noise Construction Information Request, Case No. 2016-014870ENV, 
January 3, 2019. 
9 GeoForensics Inc. Consulting and Soil Engineering, Geotechnical Investigation for Proposed New Apartment Building, 736 
Hyde Street, August 6, 2017. 
10 San Francisco Planning Department, Environmental Planning Preliminary Archeological Review, Case No. 
20160914870ENV, November 15, 2017. 
11 Tim Kelley Consulting, LLC, Historic Resource Evaluation Part 2 for 736 Hyde Street, San Francisco, June 2016. 
12 San Francisco Planning Department, Preservation Team Review Form, 736 Hyde Street, January 29, 2019. 







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


2016-014870PRJ


Building Permit


0300/010


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







Preservation Team Meeting Date: Date of Form Completion 12/18/2018


PRESERVATION TEAM REVIEW FORM


  PROJECT ISSUES:


 Is the subject Property an eligible historic resource? 


 If so, are the proposed changes a significant impact?


 Additional Notes:  


Submitted: Historic Resource Evaluation Part 2 prepared by Tim Kelley (dated June 2016) 
 
Proposed project:  Construction of a 5-story 9-unit multi-family building on a vacant lot.


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


n/a


Yes No


Yes No


Yes No


Yes No


1906-1940


Contributor Non-Contributor


  PROJECT INFORMATION:


Planner: Address:


Justin Greving 736 Hyde Street


Block/Lot: Cross Streets:


0300/010 Sutter and Post streets


CEQA Category: Art. 10/11: BPA/Case No.:


A n/a 2016-014870ENV


  PURPOSE OF REVIEW:   PROJECT DESCRIPTION:


CEQA Article 10/11 Preliminary/PIC Alteration Demo/New Construction


DATE OF PLANS UNDER REVIEW: 9/20/2018







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


The subject property is located within the National Register-listed Lower Nob Hill 
Apartment Hotel Historic District but as a vacant lot it was identified as a non-contributor 
to the historic district. Based on the findings of the HRE Part 2 prepared by Tim Kelley 
(dated June 2016), Planning Staff have determined the proposed project will not cause a 
significant adverse impact to the historic district which is a historic resource under CEQA.  
       Planning Staff have reviewed the plans dated 9/20/2018 and determined the proposed 
project will not cause a significant adverse impact to the adjacent historic resources. The 
proposed project is generally compatible with the character of the surrounding historic 
district in the following ways: 
1. General massing and scale - The proposed project will be 5-stories tall in keeping with 
the general massing and scale of the surrounding neighborhood block and general 
character of the historic district. The building does not incorporate any front setbacks and 
is built to the adjacent north and south lot lines so as to maintain the strong streetwall 
found within the neighborhood. 
2. Building proportions and materials - The proposed project incorporates a materially 
differentiated base, shaft, and capitol so as to match the vertical rhythm of the 
surrounding contributing properties. Materials of the proposed project area also 
compatible with the character of the neighborhood that features a high concentration of 
stone and finished brick. The proposed project will feature a base of stone veneer, while 
the upper floor will be finished in two tones of brick to establish a rhythm of vertical 
fenestration similar to other contributing apartment buildings within the historic district. 
The building will be capped with an anodized aluminum metal cornice that will reference 
other building cornices within the district without being a strict copy. 
3. Windows - The windows are a regular rhythm of bronze anodized aluminum windows 
with a deep reveal and a thick spandrel panel to reflect the historic proportion of solid to 
void common among contributing buildings within the district.  
4. Entry - The wide off-center entry with a prominent square canopy and a deep recess is 
similar to other buildings constructed on 25' wide lots within the district. 


  Signature of a Senior Preservation Planner / Preservation Coordinator: Date:


Allison K. Vanderslice Digitally signed by Allison K. Vanderslice 
Date: 2019.01.29 10:41:32 -08'00'








CEQA Categorical Exemption Determination


PROPERTY INFORMATION/PROJECT DESCRIPTION


Project Address


411 DOUGLASS ST


Block/Lot(s)


Project description for Planning Department approval.


Permit No.


Addition/ 


Alteration


Demolition (requires HRE for 


Category B Building)


New 


Construction


RENOVATION & VERTICAL ADDITION TO SFD, ADDITION OF (N) POWDER ROOM IN BASEMENT, 


REMODEL OF (E) KITCHEN, ADD (N) INTERIOR STAIR TO (N) 3RD FL, ADD (N) 3RD FL WITH (N) 


MASTER SUITE & REAR ROOF DECK


Case No.


2018-014945ENV


2749043


201810304510


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


Preliminary Geotechnical Investigation prepared for property/project 8, 2018 by Romig Engineers







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


02/14/2019


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


Preservation Planner Signature: Jorgen Cleemann


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


Jorgen Cleemann


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


2018-014945PRJ


Building Permit


2749/043


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







Preservation Team Meeting Date: Date of Form Completion 2/14/2019


PRESERVATION TEAM REVIEW FORM


  PROJECT ISSUES:


 Is the subject Property an eligible historic resource? 


 If so, are the proposed changes a significant impact?


 Additional Notes:  


Submitted:  Historic Resource Evaluation (dated June 2018), prepared by Tim Kelley 
Consulting. 


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


Jørgen G. Cleemann 411 Douglass Street


Block/Lot: Cross Streets:


7058/002 Corwin and Romaine Streets


CEQA Category: Art. 10/11: BPA/Case No.:


B N/A 2018-014945ENV


  PURPOSE OF REVIEW:   PROJECT DESCRIPTION:


CEQA Article 10/11 Preliminary/PIC Alteration Demo/New Construction


DATE OF PLANS UNDER REVIEW: 10/16/2018







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


According to the Historic Resource Evaluation (dated June 2018) and information accessed 
by the Planning Department, the subject building at 411 Douglass Street is a 2-story over-
basement, wood-frame, wood-clad, hipped-roof residence constructed c.1893 in the 
Castro/Upper Market neighborhood.  At the front lot line, a driveway slopes down steeply 
to the basement garage.  A walkway provides access to the main entry set back on the left 
(north) side of the first story.  The primary facade features a faceted projecting bay with 
four windows on each story that terminates with a pediment at the roof.  The first and 
second stories are divided by a hood clad in scalloped shingles.  Above the garage, the first 
and second stories each contain small windows set in decorative frames.  The roof is clad in 
asphalt shingles.  The only significant recorded exterior alterations are the rear yard 
additions (1970, 2004).  Unrecorded and undated alterations include the insertion of the 
below-grade garage and the addition of the walkway to the main entrance.   
 
Planning staff concurs with the HRE's conclusion that the subject building is not 
individually eligible for listing in the CRHR under Criterion 1, 2, or 3.  The subject building 
was among the earlier buildings constructed on its block, but was not the first such 
building and does not appear to have a notable association with the development of the 
neighborhood or any other historic events that would justify a finding of individual 
eligibility under Criterion 1.  None of the owners or occupants appears to be sufficiently 
important to history to support a finding of individual eligibility under Criterion 2.  
Architecturally, the subject building exhibits some Queen Anne features, but does not 
appear to be a particularly notable example of that style.  For instance, the subject 
building's main entrance lacks the stylistic exuberance found on full expressions of that 
style.  Therefore the subject building does not appear individually eligible for the CRHR 
under Criterion 3.  The subject building does not embody a rare construction type and 
therefore does not appear eligible for the CRHR under Criterion 4 as it applies to buildings 
and structures (the potential archeological significance of the project site is not evaluated 
in this document). 
 
The area surrounding the subject building contains a variety of different buildings that do 
not cohere visually or historically into a unified historic district. 
 
Therefore the subject building is not eligible for listing in the CRHR either individually or as 
a contributor to a historic district.


  Signature of a Senior Preservation Planner / Preservation Coordinator: Date:


Allison K. Vanderslice Digitally signed by Allison K. Vanderslice 
Date: 2019.02.22 18:03:20 -08'00'







411 Douglass Street 
Preservation Team Review Form 


February 14, 2019 
 


 


Figure 1.  411 Douglass Street.  Screenshot of 2017 Google Streetview. 







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
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES NEW FUNDING TO SUPPORT HOMELESS

PEOPLE SUFFERING FROM BEHAVIORAL HEALTH AND SUBSTANCE USE DISORDERS
Date: Thursday, February 28, 2019 10:13:26 AM
Attachments: 2.27.19 DPH Homeless Outreach Funding.pdf

 
 
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
Sent: Wednesday, February 27, 2019 4:25 PM
To: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES NEW FUNDING TO SUPPORT
HOMELESS PEOPLE SUFFERING FROM BEHAVIORAL HEALTH AND SUBSTANCE USE DISORDERS
 
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Wednesday, February 27, 2019
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131
 

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES NEW FUNDING TO

SUPPORT HOMELESS PEOPLE SUFFERING FROM
BEHAVIORAL HEALTH AND SUBSTANCE USE DISORDERS
$3 million grant from California Department of Health Care Services to the San Francisco

Department of Public Health will fund service expansion for Healthy Streets Operations
Center and homeless services

 
San Francisco, CA — Today Mayor London N. Breed announced that the San Francisco
Department of Public Health has received a $3 million grant to fund outreach and treatment
efforts for homeless individuals suffering from behavioral health and substance use disorders.
This funding will expand services for two years to further support the Healthy Streets
Operation Center’s (HSOC) efforts to help those struggling on San Francisco’s streets,
including case management, clinical services, and social worker engagement. HSOC is the
City’s coordinated, multi-departmental effort to address homelessness and unhealthy street
behaviors.
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FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE: 


Wednesday, February 27, 2019 


Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131 


 


*** PRESS RELEASE *** 


MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES NEW FUNDING TO 


SUPPORT HOMELESS PEOPLE SUFFERING FROM 


BEHAVIORAL HEALTH AND SUBSTANCE USE DISORDERS 
$3 million grant from California Department of Health Care Services to the San Francisco 


Department of Public Health will fund service expansion for Healthy Streets Operations Center 


and homeless services 


 


San Francisco, CA — Today Mayor London N. Breed announced that the San Francisco 


Department of Public Health has received a $3 million grant to fund outreach and treatment 


efforts for homeless individuals suffering from behavioral health and substance use disorders.  


This funding will expand services for two years to further support the Healthy Streets Operation 


Center’s (HSOC) efforts to help those struggling on San Francisco’s streets, including case 


management, clinical services, and social worker engagement. HSOC is the City’s coordinated, 


multi-departmental effort to address homelessness and unhealthy street behaviors.  


 


The funding will go towards increasing the City’s number of clinicians, social workers, and peer 


navigators; augmenting the Street Medicine Team and Harm Reduction Van to ensure there are 


coordinated and visible services; and extending hours of operations for programming and 


services to include more nights and weekends so there is greater coverage for those on the 


streets.  


 


“This funding will allow us to expand programs that are working to get our homeless residents 


connected to treatment and services, instead of letting people continue to cycle through our 


emergency rooms and jails,” said Mayor Breed. “We know that we need more housing and 


shelter to help our homeless population, but we also need to treat the mental illness and 


substance use disorders that can lead to homelessness in the first place.” 


 


“The increased state funding will allow us to build upon our outreach and engagement efforts 


that already are making a difference, connecting people experiencing homelessness to care and 


services for mental health and substance use issues,” said Dr. Grant Colfax, Director of Health at 


the San Francisco Department of Public Health. “The Health Department is proud to work with 


other city agencies and partner organizations to strengthen and support the Healthy Streets 


Operation Center, which is providing relief to people on the streets and improving quality of life 


for all San Franciscans.” 


 


The funding will: 
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Expand hours and capacity of services 


 


- Add a clinician to staff HSOC on the evening and weekends. This will expand the reach 


of the City’s multi-departmental effort to address homelessness and behavioral health 


needs on San Francisco’s streets.  


 


- Extend Hospitality House Drop-in Center Hours to include 5:00 p.m.- 9:00 p.m. so 


those on the streets have somewhere to go indoors, be safe, and get connected to services. 


Hospitality House serves more than 6,000 people a year in its day program, and evening 


hours will add capacity to serve more people.  


 


- Increase case management support for individuals identified by HSOC as needing 


mental health and support services. Case management is critical to helping people get and 


stay stable, healthy and housed. Additional case workers will work directly with 


homeless residents to ensure that their progress is kept on track by a case manager to help 


steer them to services and programs. 


 


Help improve health conditions on the street 


 


- Add staff to the Street Medicine Team, which provides clinical care, opioid treatment 


and additional medical and behavioral health services to homeless people to improve 


physical and mental health, and daily functioning. The Street Medicine Team has had 


success connecting those struggling with behavioral health and substance use disorders 


with treatment and services. 


 


- Expand the Mobile Harm Reduction Therapy and Counseling support program to serve 


homeless adults with behavioral health needs. The funding will purchase an additional 


van to provide counseling, support and connections in hotspots throughout the City, 


including evening and weekend hours. This approach meets individuals where they are 


throughout San Francisco to ensure they can access services. 


 


Psychiatric Emergency Services to add staff to link clients to care after discharge 


 


- Add two social workers, to be based at Psychiatric Emergency Services (PES) at 


Zuckerberg San Francisco General Hospital (ZSFG), to provide expertise, information 


and referrals for services after PES discharge, and supervise peer navigators.   


 


- Add four peer navigators to PES to help exiting clients connect to services like 


Hummingbird Place, Dore Urgent Care, Navigation Centers and other substance use and 


behavioral health programs. PES already makes up 30% of the referrals to the recently 


expanded Hummingbird Place, demonstrating a clear need to build upon that connection.  


By creating a handoff from PES to community services, these navigators will work to 


support clients so that they have additional resources and options after leaving PES.   
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The grant to the Department of Public Health comes from the California Department of Health 


Care Services. The Department of Public Health will use the funding to support these services 


through the end of June 2020.  


 


### 


 







The funding will go towards increasing the City’s number of clinicians, social workers, and
peer navigators; augmenting the Street Medicine Team and Harm Reduction Van to ensure
there are coordinated and visible services; and extending hours of operations for programming
and services to include more nights and weekends so there is greater coverage for those on the
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
services for mental health and substance use issues,” said Dr. Grant Colfax, Director of Health
at the San Francisco Department of Public Health. “The Health Department is proud to work
with other city agencies and partner organizations to strengthen and support the Healthy
Streets Operation Center, which is providing relief to people on the streets and improving
quality of life for all San Franciscans.”
 
The funding will:
 
Expand hours and capacity of services
 

Add a clinician to staff HSOC on the evening and weekends. This will expand the reach
of the City’s multi-departmental effort to address homelessness and behavioral health
needs on San Francisco’s streets.
 

Extend Hospitality House Drop-in Center Hours to include 5:00 p.m.- 9:00 p.m. so
those on the streets have somewhere to go indoors, be safe, and get connected to
services. Hospitality House serves more than 6,000 people a year in its day program,
and evening hours will add capacity to serve more people.
 

Increase case management support for individuals identified by HSOC as needing
mental health and support services. Case management is critical to helping people get
and stay stable, healthy and housed. Additional case workers will work directly with
homeless residents to ensure that their progress is kept on track by a case manager to
help steer them to services and programs.

 
Help improve health conditions on the street
 

Add staff to the Street Medicine Team, which provides clinical care, opioid treatment
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
 

Expand the Mobile Harm Reduction Therapy and Counseling support program to



serve homeless adults with behavioral health needs. The funding will purchase an
additional van to provide counseling, support and connections in hotspots throughout
the City, including evening and weekend hours. This approach meets individuals where
they are throughout San Francisco to ensure they can access services.

 
Psychiatric Emergency Services to add staff to link clients to care after discharge
 

Add two social workers, to be based at Psychiatric Emergency Services (PES) at
Zuckerberg San Francisco General Hospital (ZSFG), to provide expertise, information
and referrals for services after PES discharge, and supervise peer navigators. 

 
Add four peer navigators to PES to help exiting clients connect to services like
Hummingbird Place, Dore Urgent Care, Navigation Centers and other substance use and
behavioral health programs. PES already makes up 30% of the referrals to the recently
expanded Hummingbird Place, demonstrating a clear need to build upon that
connection.  By creating a handoff from PES to community services, these navigators
will work to support clients so that they have additional resources and options after
leaving PES. 

 
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
Subject: FW: Better Market Street Draft EIR published
Date: Thursday, February 28, 2019 10:13:13 AM

 
 
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
 

From: Thomas, Christopher (CPC) 
Sent: Wednesday, February 27, 2019 4:41 PM
To: CTYPLN - COMMISSION SECRETARY <CPC.COMMISSIONSECRETARY@sfgov.org>
Cc: Wietgrefe, Wade (CPC) <wade.wietgrefe@sfgov.org>; Horner, Justin (CPC)
<justin.horner@sfgov.org>
Subject: Better Market Street Draft EIR published
 
Good Afternoon,
 
This email is to notify the Historic Preservation Commission that the Draft Environmental Impact
Report (EIR) for the Better Market Street Project has been released and is available for review. Public
comments on the Draft EIR will be accepted from February 28, 2019 to 5:00 p.m. on April 15, 2019.
 
The Notice of Availability and the Draft EIR can be retrieved at the following website:
https://sfplanning.org/better-market-street-environmental-review-process. CDs and/or paper copies
are available upon request.
 
For more information or to submit comments on the Draft EIR, please contact Chris Thomas at the
contacts provided below.
 
Please forward this email to the Historic Preservation Commission commissioners.
 
Thank you,
 
Chris Thomas, SF Planning
Telephone: (415) 575-9036
E-Mail: christopher.thomas@sfgov.org
Chris Thomas, AICP
Environmental Planner
 
Planning Department│City and County of San Francisco
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1650 Mission Street, Suite 400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 415-575-9036│Fax: 415-558-6409
Email: Christopher.Thomas@sfgov.org
Web: www.sfplanning.org
 
 

mailto:Christopher.Thomas@sfgov.org
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
Subject: FW: ***PRESS RELEASE*** MEMORIAL SERVICE FOR PUBLIC DEFENDER JEFF ADACHI ANNOUNCED
Date: Thursday, February 28, 2019 10:11:21 AM
Attachments: 2.27.19 Public Defender Adachi Memorial Service.pdf

 
 
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
 

From: Tugbenyoh, Mawuli (MYR) 
Sent: Thursday, February 28, 2019 9:54 AM
Subject: FW: ***PRESS RELEASE*** MEMORIAL SERVICE FOR PUBLIC DEFENDER JEFF ADACHI
ANNOUNCED
 
Good morning-
 
Please share the below information about the memorial service for Public Defender Jeff Adachi this
Monday at 11AM. This event is open to the public.
 
Seating will be very limited.
 
Regards,
 
Mawuli Tugbenyoh 杜 本 樂
Liaison to Boards and Commissions
Office of Mayor London N. Breed
415.554.6298 | mawuli.tugbenyoh@sfgov.org
 
 
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE
Wednesday, February 27, 2019
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131
 
 

***PRESS RELEASE***
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FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE 
Wednesday, February 27, 2019 
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131 
 
 


***PRESS RELEASE*** 
 


MEMORIAL SERVICE FOR  
PUBLIC DEFENDER JEFF ADACHI ANNOUNCED  


Public memorial service to celebrate the life of Public Defender Adachi will take place on 
Monday, March 4th in City Hall 


 
San Francisco – Mayor London N. Breed and the family of Jeff Adachi have announced that 
there will be a public memorial service in San Francisco City Hall for Public Defender Jeff 
Adachi on Monday, March 4th at 11 AM. The service will be open to the public.   
 
“On Monday, we will gather together to celebrate Jeff Adachi’s life, his work, and the lasting 
impact he will have on our City and our criminal justice system,” said Mayor Breed. “I am 
honored to invite the people of San Francisco to come to City Hall to join us in recognizing and 
remembering Jeff, who fought hard in the community and in the courtroom, and who was a true 
public servant.”     
 
 
 


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
honored to invite the people of San Francisco to come to City Hall to join us in recognizing
and remembering Jeff, who fought hard in the community and in the courtroom, and who was
a true public servant.”                   
 
 
 

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
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED, SPEAKER NANCY PELOSI, AND COMMUNITY LEADERS

CELEBRATE THE GRAND OPENING OF PHASE II OF HUNTERS VIEW REVITALIZATION
Date: Wednesday, February 27, 2019 1:06:07 PM
Attachments: 2.27.19 Hunters View.pdf

 
 
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
Sent: Wednesday, February 27, 2019 12:43 PM
To: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED, SPEAKER NANCY PELOSI, AND
COMMUNITY LEADERS CELEBRATE THE GRAND OPENING OF PHASE II OF HUNTERS VIEW
REVITALIZATION
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Wednesday, February 27, 2019
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131
 

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED, SPEAKER NANCY PELOSI, AND

COMMUNITY LEADERS CELEBRATE THE GRAND
OPENING OF PHASE II OF HUNTERS VIEW

REVITALIZATION
Multi-department initiative opens up 177 newly built affordable homes for families

 
San Francisco, CA — Mayor London Breed, Speaker Nancy Pelosi, Supervisor Shamann
Walton, State Housing Department (HCD) Director Ben Metcalf and community leaders today
celebrated the grand opening of the newest 100% affordable housing phase of the revitalized
Hunters View community. Once completed, the re-envisioned Hunters View will be a mixed-
income, service-enhanced community, developed according to the principles of the Mayor’s
HOPE SF Initiative.
 
“I grew up in public housing—I know firsthand that the many of these locations were deeply
in need of an upgrade, which is why I am committed to seeing this process through,” said
Mayor Breed. “For the residents of Hunters View, today is the result of years of perseverance
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


COMMUNITY LEADERS CELEBRATE THE GRAND OPENING 


OF PHASE II OF HUNTERS VIEW REVITALIZATION 
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


 


“I grew up in public housing—I know firsthand that the many of these locations were deeply in 


need of an upgrade, which is why I am committed to seeing this process through,” said Mayor 


Breed. “For the residents of Hunters View, today is the result of years of perseverance and 


determination. I am excited that the new Hunters View will serve the community for generations 


to come.”  


 


“Revitalizing Hunters View is about ensuring the beautiful diversity of our city, dismantling 


barriers and building community,” said Speaker Nancy Pelosi, whose instrumental support for 


this project has served as an example of her continued dedication to all families who have lived 


in public housing. “Everyone deserves a safe, livable, and affordable place to call home. House 


Democrats are committed to supporting investments in rehabilitating aging and isolated public 


housing and creating new, affordable housing for America’s working families.” 


 


The renewed Hunters View is the result of a partnership between the Office of Community 


Investment and Infrastructure (OCII), HOPE SF, the Mayor’s Office of Housing and Community 


Development (MOHCD), the San Francisco Housing Authority (SFHA), and the John Stewart 


Company, which all played substantial roles in the ongoing efforts to transform and redevelop a 


once distressed and isolated, war-era public housing complex. 


 


“Once again I am excited to see our community be transformed and remain indigenous at the 


same time,” said District 10 Supervisor, Shamann Walton. “As a child living right here in 


Hunters View (Westpoint at the time), I never envisioned the brand new housing that we see 


today. Our children and families now enjoy a community that allows them to take advantage of 


the growth here in Bayview and in San Francisco. Vibrancy is here!”  
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Consistent with the City’s one-for-one replacement program, no existing residents were 


displaced as a result of this multi-phased development. Phases 1 is complete, and Phase 2, 


completed in 2017, contains 134 public housing replacement units with an additional 43 new 


affordable units. The final affordable housing phase of Hunters View, Phase 3, will begin 


construction in summer 2020. 


 


“With each new phase of Hunters View that opens, our city demonstrates a deep commitment to 


our residents,” said Office of Community Investment and Infrastructure Executive Director, 


Nadia Sesay. “It has been an honor to collaborate with partners and residents to create a safe, 


inclusive and vital new community.”  


 


The original Hunters View was constructed in 1957 with 267 temporary units. These units were 


never intended to be permanent housing, and due to the poor initial construction of the site and 


years of deferred construction, the property deteriorated well beyond repair. The rebuilding of 


Hunters View aims to house all current Hunters View residents as well as additional low-income 


families. In addition, the market-rate homeownership component is scheduled to kick off in 


2020. With the completion of Phase 2, all Hunters View residents that lived onsite now live in 


Phases 1 and 2.  


 


“I’m proud to be a Hunters View resident from before it was redeveloped and to see these 


beautiful new buildings built has been really exciting,” said Hunters View resident, Terrell 


Tobias. “It was also great to have had the opportunity to help in the construction of these new 


homes that went to a community that has been waiting for this and have been deserving for so 


long.” 


 


“Completion of the second phase of Hunters View delivers another 177 units of affordable 


housing, new infrastructure, another public park, and extensive community service spaces and 


programming,” said John Stewart Company President & CEO, Jack Gardner. “These amenities 


are critical to the success of any community and I am excited that they are finally a reality at 


Hunters View. This phase took the commitment of the City of San Francisco, Office of 


Community Investment and Infrastructure, the State of California, the San Francisco Housing 


Authority, HUD, our private lenders and investors, and most importantly, the residents of 


Hunters View. We are thrilled to have played a role in delivering on the vision of HOPE SF!” 


 


### 


  


 


 







and determination. I am excited that the new Hunters View will serve the community for
generations to come.”
 
“Revitalizing Hunters View is about ensuring the beautiful diversity of our city, dismantling
barriers and building community,” said Speaker Nancy Pelosi, whose instrumental support for
this project has served as an example of her continued dedication to all families who have
lived in public housing. “Everyone deserves a safe, livable, and affordable place to call home.
House Democrats are committed to supporting investments in rehabilitating aging and isolated
public housing and creating new, affordable housing for America’s working families.”
 
The renewed Hunters View is the result of a partnership between the Office of Community
Investment and Infrastructure (OCII), HOPE SF, the Mayor’s Office of Housing and
Community Development (MOHCD), the San Francisco Housing Authority (SFHA), and the
John Stewart Company, which all played substantial roles in the ongoing efforts to transform
and redevelop a once distressed and isolated, war-era public housing complex.
 
“Once again I am excited to see our community be transformed and remain indigenous at the
same time,” said District 10 Supervisor, Shamann Walton. “As a child living right here in
Hunters View (Westpoint at the time), I never envisioned the brand new housing that we see
today. Our children and families now enjoy a community that allows them to take advantage
of the growth here in Bayview and in San Francisco. Vibrancy is here!”
 
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
 
“With each new phase of Hunters View that opens, our city demonstrates a deep commitment
to our residents,” said Office of Community Investment and Infrastructure Executive Director,
Nadia Sesay. “It has been an honor to collaborate with partners and residents to create a safe,
inclusive and vital new community.”
 
The original Hunters View was constructed in 1957 with 267 temporary units. These units
were never intended to be permanent housing, and due to the poor initial construction of the
site and years of deferred construction, the property deteriorated well beyond repair. The
rebuilding of Hunters View aims to house all current Hunters View residents as well as
additional low-income families. In addition, the market-rate homeownership component is
scheduled to kick off in 2020. With the completion of Phase 2, all Hunters View residents that
lived onsite now live in Phases 1 and 2.
 
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
programming,” said John Stewart Company President & CEO, Jack Gardner. “These



amenities are critical to the success of any community and I am excited that they are finally a
reality at Hunters View. This phase took the commitment of the City of San Francisco, Office
of Community Investment and Infrastructure, the State of California, the San Francisco
Housing Authority, HUD, our private lenders and investors, and most importantly, the
residents of Hunters View. We are thrilled to have played a role in delivering on the vision of
HOPE SF!”
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
Date: Wednesday, February 27, 2019 9:50:18 AM
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
Sent: Wednesday, February 27, 2019 9:46 AM
To: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: ***PRESS RELEASE*** MEMORIAL SERVICE FOR PUBLIC DEFENDER JEFF ADACHI
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
Subject: FW: Letter for HPC Commissioners-Case No 2015-016326COA
Date: Monday, February 25, 2019 3:27:15 PM
Attachments: Letter to HPC members-02-25.pdf

 
 
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
Sent: Monday, February 25, 2019 3:25 PM
To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>; Vimr, Jonathan (CPC)
<jonathan.vimr@sfgov.org>
Subject: Letter for HPC Commissioners-Case No 2015-016326COA
 

 

Jonas/Jonathan:  Attached is a short letter from the project sponsor for submission to the HPC
Commissioners and for the administrative file in this matter.  Please let me know if you require hard
copies of the same.  Thank you, Jay
 
 
 
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
Date: Monday, February 25, 2019 3:18:32 PM
Attachments: 2018-016242ENV-CEQA Checklist and PTR Form.pdf

2017-009203ENV-CEQA Checklist (ID 1069619).pdf

 
 
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
Sent: Monday, February 25, 2019 2:22 PM
To: CTYPLN - COMMISSION SECRETARY <CPC.COMMISSIONSECRETARY@sfgov.org>
Subject: Categorical Exemptions
 

Hello,
 
Please forward the attached Categorical Exemptions to the HPC commissioners.
 
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


395 COLLINGWOOD ST


Block/Lot(s)


Project description for Planning Department approval.


Permit No.


Addition/ 


Alteration


Demolition (requires HRE for 


Category B Building)


New 


Construction


Remodel and addition to (E) single family dwelling; excavate new basement level; Create (N) foyer and 


mudroom and relocate main entry to first flr; Add (N) elevator and interior staircase; Create 2 new bedrooms on 


2nd flr. And relocate living, dining, and kitchen to 3rd flr.; Expand 3rd flr. toward rear yard and raise ceiling.


Case No.


2018-016242ENV


2752022C


201810304503


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


Archeo review complete, no effect







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


Per PTR form singed on 2/16/2019


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


02/19/2019


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


2018-016242PRJ


Building Permit


2752/022C


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







Preservation Team Meeting Date: Date of Form Completion 02/01/2019


PRESERVATION TEAM REVIEW FORM


  PROJECT ISSUES:


 Is the subject Property an eligible historic resource? 


 If so, are the proposed changes a significant impact?


 Additional Notes:  


Submitted: Historic Resource Evaluation Part One Prepared by Tim Kelley Consulting 
(June 2018) 


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


Elizabeth Munyan 395 Collingwood Street 


Block/Lot: Cross Streets:


2752/022C 21st Street, Collingwood Street, and Castro Street 


CEQA Category: Art. 10/11: BPA/Case No.:


B N/A 2018-016242ENV


  PURPOSE OF REVIEW:   PROJECT DESCRIPTION:


CEQA Article 10/11 Preliminary/PIC Alteration Demo/New Construction


DATE OF PLANS UNDER REVIEW:  1/8/2019







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


According to the Historic Resource Evaluation Part One prepared by Tim Kelley Consulting 
(dated June 2018), the subject property at 395 Collingwood Street contains a wood-frame 
building with two volumes: a large, two story over basement section that is capped with a 
cross gable roof that fronts a smaller one-story volume that is capped with a flat roof. The 
subject property is a single-family vernacular craftsman clad in stucco. In 1925, the subject 
property was built by architect William W. Harper for Frederick C. Haun, a concrete 
contractor. The subject property remained in the ownership of the Huan family until 1987, 
though numerous tenants occupied the space.  
 
Exterior alterations to the subject property include construction of a masonry and stucco 
wall (2001), reroofing (2008), construction of new deck at third floor (2009), replacement of 
16 windows (2013) and replacement of 14 additional windows (2014). 
 
No known historic events took place at this property and the building’s construction did 
not make any significant contribution to the development of the neighborhood (Criterion 
1). None of the owners or occupants have been identified as important to history (Criterion 
2). The building does not embody distinctive characteristics of a type, period, region or 
method of construction, represent the work of a master, or possess high artistic values, 
thus is not eligible for individual listing under Criterion 3 (Architecture). Based upon a 
review of information in the Department records, the subject building is not significant 
under Criterion 4 since this significance criterion typically applies to rare construction 
types when involving the built environment. The subject building is not an example of a 
rare construction type. Assessment of archaeological sensitivity is undertaken through the 
Department’s Preliminary Archaeological Review process and is outside the scope of this 
review. 
 
The subject property is not located adjacent to any known historic resources (Category A 
properties) or within the boundaries of any identified historic district. The properties on 
the subject block  were constructed between 1910 and 1960 and are not a part of a 
cohesive development pattern. The subject block is not unified in a way that would 
contribute to a potential district.  
 
Therefore, the subject building is not eligible for listing in the California Register under any 
criteria individually or as a part of a historic district.  


  Signature of a Senior Preservation Planner / Preservation Coordinator: Date:


Allison K. Vanderslice Digitally signed by Allison K. Vanderslice 
Date: 2019.02.16 06:50:24 -08'00'







 
395 Collingwood Street 


Photo Source: Google Street View 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 








CEQA Categorical Exemption Determination


PROPERTY INFORMATION/PROJECT DESCRIPTION


Project Address


2880 VALLEJO ST


Block/Lot(s)


Project description for Planning Department approval.


Permit No.


Addition/ 


Alteration


Demolition (requires HRE for 


Category B Building)


New 


Construction


The project site is located on the north side of Vallejo Street between Baker and Broderick streets in the Pacific 


Heights neighborhood. The project site is occupied by a 29-foot-tall, three-story, single-family residence 


(constructed in 1902) approximately 3,629 square feet in size with no off-street parking spaces. The project 


sponsor proposes interior renovations and a rear addition including a new dormer and roof at the rear of the 


building. The proposed project would add approximately 3,999 square feet to the existing building as well as a 


877-square-foot garage for two off-street parking spaces. The project would add a 405-square-foot deck at the 


ground floor and a 504-square-foot deck at the third floor. The finished building would be a 29-foot-tall, 


three-story, approximately 8,505-gross-square-foot, single-family residence with two off-street parking spaces. 


No changes are proposed to the front façade or the overall height of the building. During the approximately 


12-month construction period, the proposed project would require excavation of up to 8 feet below ground 


surface resulting in approximately 130 cubic yards of excavation. The proposed improvements would be 


supported by drilled piers; impact pile driving is neither proposed nor required.


Case No.


2017-009203ENV


0955016


201707111550


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


Comments and Planner Signature (optional):


A geotechnical report was prepared for the proposed project. The project site is generally underlain by up to 5 


feet below ground surface (bgs) of loose to medium dense sandy fill underlain by very loose to medium dense 


sand and sand with silt to the depths of 10 to 35 feet bgs. The depth of bedrock is anticipated to range between 


30 to 45 feet bgs. The geotechnical report concluded that the proposed project may be supported by drilled piers 


that extend approximately 20 to 45 feet bgs.


The proposed project is required to conform to the local building code, which ensures the safety of all new 


construction in the City.







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


Subject building was previously determined not to be a resource (see Case No. 2012.0228E) but is 


located within California Register-eligible Cow Hollow First Bay Tradition Historic District and the 


California Register-eligible Pacific Heights Historic District. Proposed scope will not alter the primary 


(front) elevation. Changes to side and other elevations visible from the street are compatible with the 


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


Preservation Planner Signature: Michelle A Taylor


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


Don Lewis


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


30 to 45 feet bgs. The geotechnical report concluded that the proposed project may be supported by drilled 


piers that extend approximately 20 to 45 feet bgs.


The proposed project is required to conform to the local building code, which ensures the safety of all new 


construction in the City. The building department will review the project-specific geotechnical report during its 


review of the building permit for the project. In addition, the building department may require additional 


site-specific soils report(s) through the building permit application process, as needed. The building 


department’s requirement for a geotechnical report and review of the building permit application pursuant to the 


building department’s implementation of the Building Code, local implementing procedures, and state laws, 


regulations and guidelines would ensure that the proposed project would have no significant impacts related to 


soils, seismic or other geological hazards.


Planning staff archeologists determined that the project would have no effect on archeological resources.


The department of public health has determined that the project site does not contain potential or known soil 


and/or groundwater contamination and therefore have granted a waiver from the requirements of the San 


Francisco Health Code Article 22A.


The subject building was previously determined not to be a resource (see Case No. 2012.0228E) but is located 


within California Register-eligible Cow Hollow First Bay Tradition Historic District and the California 


Register-eligible Pacific Heights Historic District. The proposed scope would not alter the primary (front) 


elevation. Changes to side and other elevations visible from the street are compatible with the district and 


include the addition of a new dormer, replacement or addition of new wood shingle siding to match, and 


installation of compatible new wood windows. Rear horizontal addition is not visible from right of way. Scope of 


work does not materially harm the California Register-eligible historic districts.


CEQA Impacts Continued







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


2017-009203PRJ


Building Permit


0955/016


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
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED MOVES FORWARD PLAN FOR AFFORDABLE HOUSING

BOND FOR 2019 ELECTION
Date: Monday, February 25, 2019 2:13:46 PM
Attachments: 2.25.19 Affordable Housing Bond.pdf

 
 
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
Sent: Monday, February 25, 2019 1:54 PM
To: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED MOVES FORWARD PLAN FOR AFFORDABLE
HOUSING BOND FOR 2019 ELECTION
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Monday, February 25, 2019
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131
 

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED MOVES FORWARD PLAN FOR

AFFORDABLE HOUSING BOND FOR 2019 ELECTION
With today’s approval by Capital Planning Committee of the $300 million Affordable Housing

Bond for November 2019, Mayor will convene a working group of housing stakeholders to
help craft the bond

 
San Francisco, CA — Today the Capital Planning Committee (CPC) approved the proposed
Capital Plan for Fiscal Years (FYs) 2020-2029, which includes a $300 million Affordable
Housing Bond that was recently announced by Mayor London N. Breed. Under the proposed
Capital Plan, the Bond is proposed for the November 2019 election. The Capital Plan now
goes to the Board of Supervisors for approval.
 
Following the vote by the CPC, Mayor Breed announced that she is convening an Affordable
Housing Bond Working Group, which will include elected officials, housing experts,
affordable housing developers, tenant advocates, property owners, labor leaders, community
leaders and others, to help craft the expenditure plan for the bond.
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


Bond for November 2019, Mayor will convene a working group of housing stakeholders to help 


craft the bond 


 


San Francisco, CA — Today the Capital Planning Committee (CPC) approved the proposed 


Capital Plan for Fiscal Years (FYs) 2020-2029, which includes a $300 million Affordable 


Housing Bond that was recently announced by Mayor London N. Breed. Under the proposed 


Capital Plan, the Bond is proposed for the November 2019 election. The Capital Plan now goes 


to the Board of Supervisors for approval.  


 


Following the vote by the CPC, Mayor Breed announced that she is convening an Affordable 


Housing Bond Working Group, which will include elected officials, housing experts, affordable 


housing developers, tenant advocates, property owners, labor leaders, community leaders and 


others, to help craft the expenditure plan for the bond. 


 


“For too many San Franciscans, it is simply too expensive to live here. This housing bond will 


allow us to continue expanding our affordable housing stock so that our low- and middle-income 


communities can remain in our City,” said Mayor Breed. “Over the coming months I will be 


bringing stakeholders to the table so that we can move forward together on this important 


measure. We need to continue to work to provide funding for affordable housing while also 


working to break down the barriers that block housing from being built.”  


 


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


 


In January, Mayor Breed announced the inclusion of the Affordable Housing Bond in the Capital 


Plan. The previous draft of the plan had the Affordable Housing Bond slated for the March 2020 


election, with the Earthquake Safety and Emergency Response Bond slated for the November 


2019 election. At the time of the announcement, Mayor Breed said conversations were still under 


way as to which Bond would be placed on the ballot for which election. The Capital Plan 


approved today places the Affordable Housing Bond for the November 2019 election and the 


ESER Bond for the March 2020 election.  
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SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94102-4681 


TELEPHONE: (415) 554-6141 


 


 


The proposed Capital Plan will be submitted to the Board of Supervisors on March 5th by Mayor 


Breed. The Affordable Housing Bond will be introduced in the coming months. 


 


### 







“For too many San Franciscans, it is simply too expensive to live here. This housing bond will
allow us to continue expanding our affordable housing stock so that our low- and middle-
income communities can remain in our City,” said Mayor Breed. “Over the coming months I
will be bringing stakeholders to the table so that we can move forward together on this
important measure. We need to continue to work to provide funding for affordable housing
while also working to break down the barriers that block housing from being built.”
 
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
 
In January, Mayor Breed announced the inclusion of the Affordable Housing Bond in the
Capital Plan. The previous draft of the plan had the Affordable Housing Bond slated for the
March 2020 election, with the Earthquake Safety and Emergency Response Bond slated for
the November 2019 election. At the time of the announcement, Mayor Breed said
conversations were still under way as to which Bond would be placed on the ballot for which
election. The Capital Plan approved today places the Affordable Housing Bond for the
November 2019 election and the ESER Bond for the March 2020 election.
 
The proposed Capital Plan will be submitted to the Board of Supervisors on March 5th by
Mayor Breed. The Affordable Housing Bond will be introduced in the coming months.
 

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
Subject: FW: *** STATEMENT *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ON THE PASSING OF PUBLIC DEFENDER JEFF ADACHI
Date: Monday, February 25, 2019 10:20:32 AM
Attachments: 2.22.19 Public Defender Jeff Adachi.pdf

 
 
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
Sent: Friday, February 22, 2019 9:35 PM
To: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** STATEMENT *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ON THE PASSING OF PUBLIC DEFENDER JEFF
ADACHI
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Friday, February 22, 2019
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131
                                                                       
                                                           

*** STATEMENT ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED ON THE PASSING OF PUBLIC

DEFENDER JEFF ADACHI
                                                           
San Francisco – Mayor London N. Breed issued the following statement regarding the
passing of San Francisco Public Defender Jeff Adachi, who died tonight at the age of 59.
 
"I am saddened to announce that San Francisco Public Defender Jeff Adachi passed away
tonight. My heart goes out to his wife, Matsuko, his daughter, Lauren, and all his friends and
family. 
 
As one of the few elected public defenders in our country, Jeff always stood up for those who
didn't have a voice, have been ignored and overlooked, and who needed a real champion. He
was committed not only to the fight for justice in the courtroom, but he was also a relentless
advocate for criminal justice reform. Jeff lead the way on progressive policy reforms,
including reducing recidivism, ending cash bail, and standing up for undocumented and
unrepresented children.
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
      


San Francisco – Mayor London N. Breed issued the following statement regarding the passing 


of San Francisco Public Defender Jeff Adachi, who died tonight at the age of 59. 
 
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


didn't have a voice, have been ignored and overlooked, and who needed a real champion. He was 


committed not only to the fight for justice in the courtroom, but he was also a relentless advocate 


for criminal justice reform. Jeff lead the way on progressive policy reforms, including reducing 


recidivism, ending cash bail, and standing up for undocumented and unrepresented children. 
 
San Francisco has lost a dedicated public servant, and our communities have lost a champion." 


 


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
Subject: FW: Mayor London N. Breed Lunar New Year Celebration
Date: Monday, February 25, 2019 10:19:29 AM
Attachments: LNY Chinese Invite.png

LNY English Invite.png

 
 
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
Sent: Friday, February 22, 2019 4:58 PM
Subject: FW: Mayor London N. Breed Lunar New Year Celebration
 
Good afternoon-
 
I wanted to pass on another exciting invitation.  
 
Mayor Breed will be hosting her first Lunar New Year celebration. We would love for all
commissioners and commissioner secretaries to attend if you are able.
 
Regards,
 
 
Mawuli Tugbenyoh 杜 本 樂
Senior Advisor 
Office of Mayor London N. Breed
415.554.6298 | mawuli.tugbenyoh@sfgov.org
 
 
 

From: MONS (MYR) 
Sent: Friday, February 22, 2019 4:44 PM
Subject: Mayor London N. Breed Lunar New Year Celebration
 
You are cordially invited to Mayor London N. Breed’s Lunar New Year celebration to
welcome the Year of the Boar with our community and City leaders on Monday, February 25,
2019.
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1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place
San Francisco, CA 94102





Mayor London N. Breed
together with
Assessor-Recorder Carmen Chu
Board of Supervisors President Norman Yee
Supervisor Sandra Lee Fewer
Supervisor Gordon Mar

cordially request the pleasure of your company
at the celebration of

Lunar New Year 2019

Year of the Boar

Monday, February 25, 2019
5:30pm - 7:30pm
Doors open at 5:00pm, Program starting at 5:30pm
Seating is Limited

City Hall Rotunda
1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place
San Francisco, CA 94102

RSVP: please email mons@sfgov.org or call (415,






 
Doors open at 5:00PM, program starts at 5:30PM.
 
Please find attached updated invitations in both English and Chinese.
 
RVSP by:
 

·         Email: mons@sfgov.org
·         Phone: 415-554-5977

 
For further information, please contact Judy Lee or Mason Lee.
 
Sincerely,
 
Mayor’s Office of Neighborhood Services
Office of Mayor London N. Breed
City and County of San Francisco
(415) 554-5977
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From: Son, Chanbory (CPC)
To: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: Invitation to screening of Political Animals with Mayor Breed and Carol Midgen
Date: Monday, February 25, 2019 9:18:04 AM

 
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
Sent: Friday, February 22, 2019 12:29 PM
Subject: Invitation to screening of Political Animals with Mayor Breed and Carol Midgen
 
Commission I would appreciate you sharing this invitation with your Commissioners.
 
Good afternoon Commissioners-
 
I hope your schedule might permit you to attend a special screening of the film Political Animals with
Former State Senator Carole Migden and Mayor London Breed. 
 
Details are as follows:
 

Thursday, February 28, 2019
4:30 PM – 6:30 PM
City Hall, Room 201
1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place
San Francisco, CA 94102

 
To view the trailer for Political Animals, please click the following link:
http://www.politicalanimalsdoc.com/.  Please RSVP to  abigail.fay@sfgov.org
 
 
 
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
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES COMPLETION OF HUMMINGBIRD PLACE

EXPANSION OF BEHAVIORAL HEALTH AND SUBSTANCE USE STABILIZATION BEDS
Date: Friday, February 22, 2019 11:27:25 AM
Attachments: 2.21.19 Hummingbird Place.pdf

 
 
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
Sent: Thursday, February 21, 2019 2:52 PM
To: Press Office, Mayor (MYR) <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>
Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES COMPLETION OF
HUMMINGBIRD PLACE EXPANSION OF BEHAVIORAL HEALTH AND SUBSTANCE USE STABILIZATION
BEDS
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Thursday, February 21, 2019
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131
 

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES COMPLETION OF

HUMMINGBIRD PLACE EXPANSION OF BEHAVIORAL
HEALTH AND SUBSTANCE USE STABILIZATION BEDS

Fourteen new beds will help serve individuals suffering from addiction and mental illness and
advance Mayor Breed’s goal of opening 100 new beds this year

 
San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today announced that 14 new beds are now
operational at Hummingbird Place, a Navigation Center specifically tailored to serve clients
with behavioral health and substance use issues.
 
Hummingbird Place can now serve up to 29 overnight clients at a time, in addition to daytime
clients. As a result of the recent Educational Revenue Augmentation Fund (ERAF) windfall
appropriation, Mayor Breed now expects to be able to open an additional 86 new substance
use and behavioral health stabilization beds, bringing the total to 100 new beds this year.
 
“For those who are severely ill on our streets, these beds serve as a chance to stabilize and
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


operational at Hummingbird Place, a Navigation Center specifically tailored to serve clients with 


behavioral health and substance use issues. 


 


Hummingbird Place can now serve up to 29 overnight clients at a time, in addition to daytime 


clients. As a result of the recent Educational Revenue Augmentation Fund (ERAF) windfall 


appropriation, Mayor Breed now expects to be able to open an additional 86 new substance use 


and behavioral health stabilization beds, bringing the total to 100 new beds this year.  


 


“For those who are severely ill on our streets, these beds serve as a chance to stabilize and decide 


on their next steps, including treatment,” said Mayor Breed. “Helping people suffering from 


severe mental illness and addiction is not only good for those individuals, it is good for the City. 


We can’t allow these people to continue cycling between the emergency room and the criminal 


justice system.” 


 


Hummingbird Place works closely with adults facing homelessness, mental health and substance 


use challenges and introduces clients to a multi-disciplinary system of care. In October, Mayor 


Breed announced the expansion at Hummingbird Place and directed the San Francisco 


Department of Public Health (SFDPH) to expedite and expand a plan to add mental health beds 


at Zuckerberg San Francisco General Hospital. 


 


“We are delighted to expand Hummingbird Place, which is helping the City’s most vulnerable 


residents break out of the cycle of alternating from the streets, to jail to hospitalization,” said Dr. 


Grant Colfax, San Francisco Director of Public Health. “Hummingbird Place provides a safe 


environment for clients to pause, away from the stresses of life on the street and get linked to 


supportive services to improve their living situation, health and wellbeing.” 


 


Mayor Breed supported funding in the budget to expand Hummingbird Place, which is located 


on the campus of Zuckerberg San Francisco General Hospital. The 24-hour facility is managed 


by PRC, a San Francisco-based nonprofit that helps people affected by HIV/AIDS, substance use 


or mental health issues better realize the opportunities available to them by providing integrated 
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legal, social and health services that address the broad range of social risk factors that impact 


wellness and limit potential. 


 


“Hummingbird Place offers a critical, short-term overnight model that facilitates patient 


stabilization, provides linkage to social services and offers clients an opportunity for referral to 


longer-term treatment and recovery,” said Brett Andrews, CEO of PRC. “The work we’re doing 


makes a real, tangible impact across San Francisco to help end homelessness and provide other 


vital services to these local residents.” 


 


### 


 







decide on their next steps, including treatment,” said Mayor Breed. “Helping people suffering
from severe mental illness and addiction is not only good for those individuals, it is good for
the City. We can’t allow these people to continue cycling between the emergency room and
the criminal justice system.”
 
Hummingbird Place works closely with adults facing homelessness, mental health and
substance use challenges and introduces clients to a multi-disciplinary system of care. In
October, Mayor Breed announced the expansion at Hummingbird Place and directed the San
Francisco Department of Public Health (SFDPH) to expedite and expand a plan to add mental
health beds at Zuckerberg San Francisco General Hospital.
 
“We are delighted to expand Hummingbird Place, which is helping the City’s most vulnerable
residents break out of the cycle of alternating from the streets, to jail to hospitalization,” said
Dr. Grant Colfax, San Francisco Director of Public Health. “Hummingbird Place provides a
safe environment for clients to pause, away from the stresses of life on the street and get
linked to supportive services to improve their living situation, health and wellbeing.”
 
Mayor Breed supported funding in the budget to expand Hummingbird Place, which is located
on the campus of Zuckerberg San Francisco General Hospital. The 24-hour facility is managed
by PRC, a San Francisco-based nonprofit that helps people affected by HIV/AIDS, substance
use or mental health issues better realize the opportunities available to them by providing
integrated legal, social and health services that address the broad range of social risk factors
that impact wellness and limit potential.
 
“Hummingbird Place offers a critical, short-term overnight model that facilitates patient
stabilization, provides linkage to social services and offers clients an opportunity for referral to
longer-term treatment and recovery,” said Brett Andrews, CEO of PRC. “The work we’re
doing makes a real, tangible impact across San Francisco to help end homelessness and
provide other vital services to these local residents.”
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